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Established in 1963, Institute of Certified Public Accountants of 
Singapore (ICPAS) is the national accountancy body that develops, 
supports and enhances the integrity, status and interests of 
the profession. 

The Certified Public Accountant Singapore (CPA Singapore) is a 
professional in accountancy, finance and business who has the 
relevant work experience in addition to a recognised accountancy 
qualification. CPAs Singapore serve every corner of the world in 
every industry. Many of them helm some of the most prominent 
local and international corporations.

ICPAS accords the CPA Singapore designation. Working closely 
alongside businesses, ICPAS connects its membership to an 
unmatched range of information resources, events, professional 
development and networking opportunities. Presently, there are 
more than 20,000 members making their strides in businesses 
across all industries in Singapore and around the world.
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Notice is hereby given that in accordance with Article 67 of the Constitution of the Institute, the Annual General 
Meeting 2008/2009 of Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore will be held on Saturday, 18 April 2009 
at 2.00pm, at Marina Mandarin, Marina Mandarin Ballroom, Level 1, 6 Raffles Boulevard, Marina Square, Singapore 
039594.

Agenda

1 President’s address.

2 To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting 2007/2008 of members held on Saturday, 19 April 2008.

3 To receive the Report of the Council for the year 2008/2009 and Accounts of the Institute for the year ended 31 
December 2008.

4 To elect eight members to the Council as follows:

(a)  Practising members – four to hold office for a term of two years;

(b)  Non-practising members – four to hold office for a term of two years.

The following members of the Council retire in accordance with the provisions of Articles 38 to 40 of the 
Constitution:

Practising Members  Non-practising Members
Don Ho Mun-Tuke  Quek Shi Kui
Kon Yin Tong  Tan Boen Eng
Steven Phan Swee Kim  Tom Yee Lat Shing
Sitoh Yih Pin  Yim Kim May 

Nominations have been received for the following:

Practising Members Nominated by
Don Ho Mun-Tuke    Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong
Kon Yin Tong     Khoo Ho Tong
Steven Phan Swee Kim    Lee Chee Wung
Sitoh Yih Pin     Jerry Lee Kian Eng
      Lim Boon Cheng

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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Non-Practising Members   Nominated by
Quek Shi Kui     Carolyn Huang Baoyu
Tan Boen Eng     Liu Sy Yee
Tom Yee Lat Shing    Loh Hoon Sun
Yim Kam May     Tan Hun Tong
      Wong Lai Yong

By order of the Council

Janet Tan
Secretary
25 March 2009
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iii

INSTITuTe oF CeRTIFIed PublIC ACCouNTANTS oF SINGAPoRe

20 Aljunied Road, #06-02 CPA House, Singapore 389805
Telephone : (65) 6749 8060    
Facsimile : (65) 6749 8061

ANNuAl GeNeRAl MeeTING luNCh

Lunch will be served at 12.45pm, followed by the Annual General Meeting at 2.00pm.  To assist the Secretariat in 
the lunch arrangements, please return this reply form to the Institute by 9 April 2009.

I will be attending the AGM lunch on Saturday, 18 April 2009, at 12.45pm, at Marina Mandarin, Marina 
Mandarin ballroom, level 1, 6 Raffles Boulevard, Marina Square, Singapore 039594.

Member’s Name (in block): ___________________________________________________________________________

I/C Number: _______________________________________________________________________________________

Membership Category: *Honorary/Fellow/Practising/Non-Practising/Provisional/Member-in-retirement

Company: _________________________________________________________________________________________

Telephone Number: ________________________________ *(Office)/(Home)

E-mail address: ____________________________________________________________________________________

Date: _____________________________________________________________________________________________

Please tick if *Vegetarian/Muslim menu is required  o

Note: The lunch menu will be ‘no pork, no lard’.

*Please delete where inapplicable.

Annual General Meeting
lunch Reply Form

NB: To avoid unnecessary costs to the Institute, please               
 inform the Secretariat at least 3 days before the       
 function if you have registered but are unable to   
 attend the AGM lunch subsequently.

Signature
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directed by distinct vision and mission,  
the Institute is well-poised to become  
a globally recognised leading accountancy body.

>
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President’s Message

dear fellow accountants and CPAs Singapore,

2008 was another year of good performance. 
The Institute’s membership grew by more than 
one thousand members in 2008 over 2007. 
ICPAS surpassed its membership milestone 
in 2008 and welcomed its 20,000th member 
in September. Financially, our total revenue of 
$19,905,016 for 2009 is an increase of 17.7 per 
cent over 2007.

During the past year, the Institute has seen 
a number of significant milestones and 
accomplishments:

Professional development
In the past year, the Institute 
continued to present the tools for 
career development and growth 
through a multitude of Continuing 
Professional Education 
courses, forums, seminars and 
conferences. The events focused 
on topical issues that are closed 
to the heart of accountants. 
Some of the significant issues 
that were brought to the table 
for discussion include Fair 
Value Accounting, changes to 
SSA 700 as well as Risk and 
Return in volatile times at the 

CPA Forum. ICPAS continued 
to be Accounting and Corporate 
Regulatory Authority (ACRA)’s 
strategic partner in the Public 
Accountants Conference 2008 
where it focused on Growing 
the Accountancy Sector and 

Profession in July.

Thought leadership
To demonstrate the thought 
leadership role of ICPAS, the 
Institute rolled out a number of 
initiatives and published a series 
of white papers. These include 
the CPA Singapore Roundtable, 

which provides a platform 

for industry leaders to discuss a broad array of 
topical issues and subjects, the CPA Singapore 
Business Confidence Survey, which provides a 
scoreboard of accountants take on the business 
and economic climate in Singapore, and a 
commissioned survey on Young Accountants’ 
Career Intentions to find out employee loyalty 
amongst young accountants. In addition, the 
study provides an insight on young accountants’ 
career path and goals. 

Advocacy
As the national voice of the accounting 
profession, ICPAS works closely with the decision 
makers and influencers to ensure that our 
members and thus, the profession as a whole, 
is well represented. For example, the Institute 
worked closely with Accounting Standards 
Council in reviewing new accounting exposure 
drafts and setting accounting standards. We 
also continued our regular dialogues with ACRA 
to discuss issues of concern and touch base 
on developments relating to the accounting 
profession.

On 1 December, our Vice-President, Dr Ernest 
Kan, was appointed to the Committee to Develop 
the Accountancy Sector (CDAS) by Ministry of 
Finance. Three of our Council members, Mr Kon 
Yin Tong, Mr Sitoh Yih Pin and Professor Pang 
Yang Hoong have also been appointed to CDAS 
in their respective capacity. This Committee has 
been established to embark on a fundamental 
review of the accountancy sector, with the 
objective of positioning Singapore as the premier 
global hub in Asia for accountancy services and 
professionals. 

International Recognition
The Institute continued to expand our 
international presence through a couple 
of Agreement of Co-operation (AOC) and 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) signed 
during the year. We signed an AOC with the 
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
in Beijing. The two national accountancy bodies 
will work together to provide training and 
professional development activities. We also 



>     ICPAS     >     annual report 2008/2009 03

signed a MOU to offer Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in England and Wales’ internationally 
recognised Associated Chartered Accountant 
course in Singapore. 

engaging Members and enhancing Value
In 2008, ICPAS enhanced the various 
communication channels and resources for our 
members. We have given our website a facelift 
for easier navigation and enhanced contents. 
At the same time, the weekly ePublication was 
renamed CPA Singapore Wire and donned 
with a fresh look and new sections including 
Feature, Highlights and Online Poll, to provide 
members with more news and information in the 
accounting and finance arena. To better engage 
our growing readership and in response to the 
wider interest of our members, we have enriched 
the content of foundation columns that have 
moulded the Singapore Accountant journal over 
the years and introduced new sections.

Raising the profile of CPA Singapore
ICPAS’ aggressive branding campaign in 2008 
entailed a series of advertisements featuring the 
key messages of “Stay Ahead of the Pack” and 
“Evolve Your Career with CPA Singapore” that 
were publicised through various media platforms 
including print, outdoor and online. We were 
also constantly seen and heard across all media 
channels through interviews and soundbites 
given by prominent ICPAS representatives and 
CPAs Singapore throughout the year.

We actively marketed the CPA Singapore 
designation to our targeted groups. One 
example is the signing of an exclusive year-
long sponsorship with Singapore Management 
University’s student body, Accounting Society 
(ASOC). This initiative will allow ICPAS to 
forge a closer relationship with accountancy 
undergraduates through various activities. This 
also enhanced exposure of the Institute and the 
CPA Singapore designation.

Providing Accountancy education
ICPAS remains committed to meet the needs 
of the accountancy industry by providing quality 

education and training through Singapore 
Accountancy Academy (SAA), the training arm 
of the Institute. To cater to the growing pool of 
students, SAA expanded its Main Campus at 
Aljunied Road by 13,000 square feet, through 
the rental of additional office space at the 
adjacent building, KH Plaza. The latest expansion 
increased its total campus floor space by thirty 
per cent. 

ICPAS Strategies for the Next Three Years
ICPAS today is very different from a decade ago.  
It has been transforming and reinventing itself.
However, the Institute recognises that there are 
more we have to do to raise ourselves to the next 
level of growth. We will need to further develop 
ourselves to remain relevant in this fast changing 
world. We have hence embarked on an extensive 
strategic planning exercise to take us forward 
in the next three years. The strategic plan is 
timely as the Singapore government is looking at 
developing the nation as the leading international 
centre in Asia for accountancy services and 
professionals. We are excited about the years 
ahead for the Institute and the accountancy 
sector as we roll out our plans.

On a personal note, I will be stepping down as 
President of ICPAS when my term ends at the 
upcoming Annual General Meeting. It has been 
my privilege and honour to be a part of ICPAS’ 
continuing transformation and ever-changing 
journey of excellence. I am confident that under 
the new leadership, ICPAS will continue to serve 
the needs of the accounting profession and take 
the lead in growing the profession. I am very 
grateful for your friendship and personal support 
all these years, but most particularly, for your 
support of the Institute. I would like to specially 
thank the Council, members, stakeholders, 
management, staff and students for their 
dedication and contributions to help shape 
ICPAS to what it is today.

TAN BOEN ENG
President
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ICPAS Council 2008/2009

1  Loh Hoon Sun
2  Janet Tan (Secretary)
3  Pang Yang Hoong
4  Gerard Ee
5  Danny Teoh
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6  Ernest Kan (Vice-President)
7  Lee Chee Wung
8  Don Ho
9  Tan Boen Eng (President)
10  Wong Lai Yong

11  Khoo Ho Tong (Treasurer)
12  Tom Yee
13  Yim Kam May
14  Kon Yin Tong
15  Quek Shi Kui

Not in Picture:
Lim Boon Cheng
Steven Phan
Sitoh Yih Pin
Gillian Yeo
Yeoh Oon Jin
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Corporate Information

The Council
Tan Boen Eng – President

Ernest Kan – Vice-President
Khoo Ho Tong – Treasurer

elected to Represent Practising Members
Don Ho

Ernest Kan
Khoo Ho Tong
Kon Yin Tong

Lim Boon Cheng
Steven Phan
Sitoh Yih Pin
Yeoh Oon Jin

elected to Represent Non-Practising Members
Gerard Ee

Loh Hoon Sun
Pang Yang Hoong

Quek Shi Kui
Tan Boen Eng
Wong Lai Yong

Tom Yee
Yim Kam May

Appointed under Article 27 of the ICPAS Constitution
Prof. Gillian Yeo (appointed on 19.04.2008)

Co-opted under Article 28 of the ICPAS Constitution
Lee Chee Wung (appointed on 01.01.2008)

Danny Teoh (appointed 19.04.2008)

Secretary/executive director
Janet Tan

Auditors
Baker Tilly TFWLCL

TeoFoongWongLCLoong
15 Beach Road, #03-10 Beach Road

Singapore 189677

Registered and Administrative office
20 Aljunied Road, #06-02 CPA House, Singapore 389805

Telephone : (65) 6749 8060    
Facsimile : (65) 6749 8061

E-Mail : cpasingapore@icpas.org.sg
Website : www.icpas.org.sg
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Minutes of Annual General Meeting 
2007/2008

Date: Saturday, 19 April 2008
Time: 2:25pm
Venue: Marina Mandarin Ballroom

Total number of members present
Practising members:   60
Non-practising members: 282
Provisional members:   28
 370

Chairman and President:  Mr Tan Boen Eng
Secretary   Ms Janet Tan

1. Notice of Meeting
 The notice of meeting, having been circulated to members before the meeting, was taken as read.

2. President’s Address 
 The Chairman welcomed all members present at the Institute’s Annual General Meeting (AGM) 2007/2008.  He 

updated the meeting on the Institute’s progress and activities for the past year as follows:

 2007 was another year of good performance and growth. ICPAS membership grew by close to six per cent, 
which is an increment of more than one thousand members. The membership figures stood at 19,168 in 2007. 

 Singapore Accountancy Academy had also rolled out new programmes to provide quality academic and 
technical training. One such programme is the University of London’s BSc Accounting & Finance degree, 
enabling graduates to apply for ICPAS Professional Examniation and eventually become our members. 

 In 2007, the Institute signed two memorandum of co-operations (MOCs) with Vietnam Association of Certified 
Public Accountants as well as Cambodia’s National Accounting Council and Kampuchea Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and Auditors, which is a tripartite MOC. It had also signed an Agreement of Co-Operation 
with Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in April 2008. With these in place, ICPAS would be 
promoting mutual co-operation for the advancement of accounting knowledge, professional and intellectual 
development and the interests of our respective members. 

 ICPAS had also signed a Memorandum of Understanding with Institute of Chartered Accountants in England 
and Wales to offer the ACA qualification in Singapore. This would provide an avenue for accounting as well as 
non-accounting graduates to qualify as CPA Singapore. Hopefully, this would help to increase the supply of 
accountants in Singapore. 

 The launch of the UOB-ICPAS Professionals Platinum Card also unlocked more value for members and 
promoted greater recognition of the accounting professionals. 

 ICPAS had also made great effort over the last year in heightening the profile of CPAs Singapore and ICPAS. The 
Institute has also just launched the CPA Singapore identity prior to the meeting. This was part of ICPAS continual 
efforts to raise the profile of CPA Singapore.  The ICPAS logo remained as a separate corporate identity.
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 Appreciation

 The Chairman acknowledged the contributions of the Council and Committee members in the past year. He also 
informed the meeting that Mr John Seow and Professor Chan Yoke Kai would be retiring from the Council. The 
Chairman acknowledged their valuable contributions to the Institute. He also thanked all members of ICPAS for 
their support. 

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting 2006/2007 

 3.1 The minutes of the AGM 2006/2007 held on 21 April 2007, having been circulated to all members were  
  taken as read.

 3.2 On the proposal of Ms Wong Lai Yong and seconded by Mr Lee Chee Wung, the minutes of the AGM   
  2006/2007, were approved.

 3.3 The Chairman then polled the members present on the confirmation of the minutes.  From the poll results,  
  the Chairman declared that the minutes had been confirmed.

4. Annual Report and Accounts 2007/2008

4.1 The Chairman referred members to the Annual Report of the Council for the year 2007/2008 and the   
  Accounts for the Institute for the year ended 31 December 2007 and invited comments from the   
  members present.

4.2 Mr Dhinakaran asked if it was financially prudent for the Institute to pay back the loan early. He referred  
  to the Balance Sheets pointing out that the current assets are $6.3 million versus the liabilities of $5.1 million  
  as a bank loan. However, the interest earned is sometimes less than one per cent, whereas the Institute is  
  servicing a loan interest of around four to six per cent. 

4.2.1 Treasurer Mr Khoo Ho Tong informed that the loan payment that is scheduled for six years, has   
 remaining four years to go. To date, there is an outstanding loan of $6.4 million. The Institute tries to  
 put as much money in the fixed deposit as possible. The balance sheet showed the current account of  
 $2.5 million, which should be reduced in the following 2008 accounts.

4.2.2 Vice-President Dr Ernest Kan added that the Institute is indeed exercising financial prudence. Looking  
 at the current set of accounts, he said that the member’s observation is correct, in that it looks   
 as though there is a lot of  cash available versus a large liability. It would hence be wise to pay off the  
 loan in view  of the high interest. However, of the $6.3 million, the Institute already has commitments  
 for half the amount. As for the other half, the Institute would look at the overall working capital   
 management holistically. He understands that the Treasurer is in fact reviewing the use of other half.  
 If the Institute could afford it, some of the amount would go into loan settlement. However, this needs  
 to be handled carefully considering that the Institute has a number of projects to undertake. One of  
 these is on the entire IT infrastructure, together with one or two other projects in the pipeline.

Minutes of Annual General Meeting 
2007/2008
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4.2.3 Mr John Seow offered a different point of view and praised Mr Khoo for doing a fine job. When the  
 Institute bought the 6 Raffles Quay property, it was almost scrapping the bottom of the barrel. It had  
 to stretch and made the commitment for the loan over six years. However, the current Treasurer and  
 Council have managed to turn this around with prudent financial management just over the current  
 financial period. 

4.2.4 Mr Khoo highlighted that the loan has a two-year penalty clause, hence the Institute is unable to pay  
 off the loan earlier. When the two-year period is over, the Institute would definitely use some of the  
 funds to pay the loan.

4.3 Mr Tan See Peng referred to the income and expenditure statement and commented that it looks like the  
 Institute cannot go on a sustainable basis. As it is, the Institute is in the red to the tune of almost $2 million  
 this year, and $1.4 million last year. Fortunately, it has the surplus from the Academy to offset the loss. He  
 asked if the Council would consider having other income streams like website advertisements.

4.3.1 Dr Kan said it has been the Institute’s concern, looking at the operating cost vis-a-vis the subscription  
 fees. The subscription for non-practising members has been $140 since 1985. For a record of 23  
 years, the Institute has not raised the fee. The Institute has been very mindful when increasing the  
 cost to members and has had debates on this. In spite of the loss, it still has not burdened members  
 with an increased fee. When the Institute gets itself up to speed with the IT infrastructure, it hopes to  
 raise some income through the website to lessen the burden.

4.3.2 Mr Khoo highlighted that the cost per member is $190 compared to the average funds collected at  
 $138. If the Institute added back the cost of $1.3 million charged out to the Academy, the cost per  
 member will be $256, far above the $140 received from approximately 18,000 non-practising members.

4.3.3 Mr John Seow commented that it is a perpetual problem over the years, that is, the subscription is  
 not sufficient to cover the administrative expenses that are meant for members’ welfare. There has  
 always been call for subscription fees to be raised. On the other hand, members said that the Institute  
 is making a lot of profit and asked for the fees to be reduced. The truth is the Secretariat expenses are  
 high. Fortunately, it has the Academy to subsidise the expenses. He noted that this problem will  
 continue but he believed the Treasurer would know what to do next. 

4.4  On the implementation of FRS, Mr Tan See Ping said that he came across one annual report, which   
 stated that the method of accounting for sale of property units by property developers is by the percentage  
 of completion method. On the other hand, FRS 18 appeared to state that the completed contract method  
 should be used for such cases. Mr Tan said it looks confusing and asked which FRS one should apply.

4.4.1 Dr Kan noted that Mr Tan has raised a technical question on accounting methods asking about the  
 percentage of completion method versus the completed contract method. He went on to say that  
 looking at the international accounting standards today, when it comes to accounting for construction  
 contracts, the completed contract alternative has been effectively eliminated for such cases. When  
 accounting for construction contracts in respect of the sale of property units by developers, it is   

Minutes of Annual General Meeting 
2007/2008
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 the percentage of completion method that is accepted. When the standards were adopted in   
 Singapore, because of our unique situation here, in order to import that standard the way it is, we  
 have to account for it using the percentage of completion method. But we have an RAP 11 that  
 allows us to apply the percentage of completion method. However, he understands that RAP 11 has  
 been or would be withdrawn at some point. If that happens, we would be fully aligned with the  
 international  standard and property developers will have to apply the completed contract method.

4.4.2 ICPAS’ auditor, Mr Joseph Toh from M/S Baker Tilly TFWLCL, confirmed Dr Kan’s explanation.   
 Because of the different way of accounting treatment, in countries like Hong Kong and Australia,  
 the property developer cannot apply the percentage of completion method. There, one should   
 apply the completed contract method. As such, the Institute has taken the position and issued the  
 RAP as guidance to all members. Until such time that the RAP is withdrawn, we should wait and see  
 what the final position by IASB would be taken.

4.5 On the subject of raising subscription fees, Ms Betty Woo Chi Kwan asked if there is a way to apportion the  
 Academy’s income to the Secretariat. She noticed that the salaries and administration expenses of the  
 Secretariat have increased. However, takings from subscription fees as well as the number of members  
 have not increased proportionately. On the other hand, the Academy’s expenses have decreased and its  
 income has increased. If the Institute is able to apportion some of the Academy’s takings to the Secretariat,  
 its accounts would have a surplus and we could avoid raising members’ fees.

4.5.1 Mr Khoo replied that the Secretariat’s expenses are expected to increase year after year in view of  
 inflation. As for salary expenses, the Institute in principle, follows National Wage Council’s guidelines.  
 As stated under Note 3, additional property-related expenses of about $450,000 was incurred for City  
 Campus in FY2007.

4.5.2 Mr John Seow agreed with Mr Khoo that the administrative expenses will increase year after year.  
 Similarly, in order to provide services to members, especially to practising members, the staff strength  
 and the infrastructure has to go up. Hence, the administration expenses will go up. He pointed out  
 that since ICPAS has bought the 6 Raffles Quay property for the Academy to run its courses, the  
 Academy  is not incurring related expenses of renting another venue. That is why there is a great  
 reduction in the Academy’s expenses. As for the suggestion to apportion the income from the left to  
 the right pocket, this should not even be considered. The income presented on the Institute is taken  
 as a  whole, without separating the Academy from the Secretariat. Nonetheless, the sectionalisation is  
 to show the members the kind of expenses the Institute has to incur in order to provide services for  
 them. He added that it is a happy situation to have a training arm funding the Institute’s expenditure. 

4.5.3 Ms Woo suggested that the Secretariat charge the Academy rental since the property depreciation is  
 charged to ICPAS’ account while the Academy is using the place for seminars and not members’  
 activities. This would help to balance the accounts.  

Minutes of Annual General Meeting 
2007/2008
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4.5.4 Mr Khoo clarified that $1.3 million has already been charged to the Academy based on the market  
 rental rate. As he had mentioned earlier, if the $1.3 million was not charged out, the cost per member  
 would be $256 instead of $190. But for consolidation purposes, the $1.3 million was taken out.

4.6 Mr Tan Bee Hong noted that under Note 6, the CPE profit has increased by about one hundred per cent,  
 In 2007, the surplus was $621,935 versus $382,451 in 2006. The revenue has increased from $1.7 million to  
 $1.8 million. However, the expenses have not increased. He concluded that the prices of the CPE courses  
 have increased. He asked if the Institute is going to increase the CPE fees by one hundred per cent   
 every year and whether the Institute is making profit out of members. He also wanted to know if the CPE is  
 for members only or opened to the public. 

4.6.1 Dr Kan replied that the operating costs increase every year. Members should leave it to the   
 Management to decide on the fees based on the market conditions. The fees of CPE courses offered  
 by ICPAS are competitive. For example, the member’s rate for a two-day tax seminar by SIM is at  
 $695 while that offered by ICPAS is at $470. Seminars such as the budget seminars are also   
 subsidised by ICPAS. Dr Kan disagreed that the Institute cannot make profit from the CPE courses.  
 He asked if the Institute does not profit from running CPE courses, then where else can it make   
 money? However, the Institute is mindful that it has to be fair to members as well. The Institute does  
 not raise fees purposely just to make money out of members. Moreover, the courses are also offered  
 to non-members.

4.6.2 Mr Khoo added that some of the courses are held in CPA House and City Campus, not at a   
 hotel. The Institute also tried to reduce the cost and even charged members as low as $30 for some  
 of the courses. 

4.6.3 Mr Evan Law, the Academy’s Training Director, explained that more members are attending the   
 courses. As a result, some classes have doubled in size. It used to be one lecturer to a class size of  
 twenty attendees. Now, it is one lecturer to a class size of fifty to sixty attendees. Therefore, while the  
 takings for CPE courses have increased, expenses such as hiring a lecturer remain.

4.7 Mr Tan Bee Hong raised another question on the Institute’s two properties - CPA House and 6 Raffles Quay.  
 Since the Institute charges the Academy rental, should the property be classified as investment property instead?

4.7.1 Mr Khoo replied that it is owner-occupied, hence, it cannot be classified as such.

4.7.2 Dr Kan added that staff occupies City Campus. Hence, it does not qualify as investment property. 

4.8 With reference to FRS 16, Mr Tan encouraged the Institute to disclose the fair value of CPA House at   
 Aljunied Road as well. In addition, looking at the deficit, he also asked if it is sustainable for the Institute. 

4.8.1 Dr Kan replied that his points are noted and they will be looked into.

Minutes of Annual General Meeting 
2007/2008
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4.9  Mr S Nallakaruppan congratulated the Council and the staff of the Institute for generating a sizeable profit  
  to subsidise the activities for members.

4.10 As no further matters were raised, the Annual Report of the Institute for the year 2007/2008 and the   
 Accounts of the Institute for the year ended 31 December 2007 have been received by the meeting, upon  
 proposal by Mr John Seow and seconded by Mr Don Ho.

5. election of Council Members

5.1 The Chairman informed the meeting that the following members of the Council had retired in accordance with  
 the provisions of Articles 38 to 40 of the Constitution:

  Practising Members Non-practising Members
  Dr Ernest Kan  Professor Chan Yoke Kai
  Mr Khoo Ho Tong  Mr Loh Hoon Sun
  Mr John Seow  A/Professor Pang Yang Hoong
  Mr Yeoh Oon Jin  Ms Wong Lai Yong

5.2 As only four nominations each had been received in respect of the Practising Members and Non-practising  
 Members, the four Practising Members and four Non-practising Members were deemed to be duly elected  
 members of the Council for a two-year term as from this Annual General Meeting in accordance with Article  
 23 of the ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules. They were:

  Practising Members Non-practising Members
  Dr Ernest Kan  Mr Gerard Ee
  Mr Khoo Ho Tong  Mr Loh Hoon Sun
  Mr Lim Boon Cheng A/Professor Pang Yang Hoong
  Mr Yeoh Oon Jin  Ms Wong Lai Yong   

6. Termination of Meeting

In conclusion, the Chairman cited Rule 6 of the ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules, which provided that no motion 
shall be discussed at any Annual General Meeting of the Institute unless the required notice of fourteen days was 
given.  As the Secretariat had not received any such notice, and as all items on the agenda had been dealt with, 
the meeting was formally declared closed at 3:30pm.

 Signed as a correct record
 Chairman

Minutes of Annual General Meeting 
2007/2008
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Characterised with a singular line of action,  
the Institute has in place an established set of processes 
that is well-oiled to meet the demands of tomorrow.

>
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Report of the Council

The Council has pleasure in presenting its 2008/2009 Annual Report and Accounts of the Institute for the year ended 
31 December 2008.

At the first Council meeting held on 19 April 2008, the following Council members were elected as office bearers:

President - Tan Boen Eng
Vice President - Ernest Kan
Treasurer - Khoo Ho Tong

The Council
The 2008/2009 Council held ten ordinary meetings from 19 April 2008 to 28 February 2009.  The number of Council 
meetings attended (A) and the number of committees on which each Council member served (B) are given below:

A b A b

Gerard Ee 8 3 Quek Shi Kui 8 3

Don Ho 10 3 Sitoh Yih Pin 5 5

Ernest Kan 7 10 Tan Boen Eng 10 10

Khoo Ho Tong 9 9 Danny Teoh 3 1

Kon Yin Tong 5 3 Wong Lai Yong 10 5

Lee Chee Wung 6 5 Tom Yee 7 3

Lim Boon Cheng 7 5 Gillian Yeo 4 3

Loh Hoon Sun 9 3 Yeoh Oon Jin 6 3

Pang Yang Hoong 7 2 Yim Kam May 8 3

Steven Phan 5 2

ICPAS Strategic Plans
During the year, the Council approved the Institute’s new strategic plans, setting priorities for the Institute moving 
forward. As part of the strategic planning exercise, the Institute reviewed its strengths and achievements, its threats 
and opportunities, modified its mission and vision, developed strategic goals and established action plans. These 
strategic goals, performance initiatives and strategies will serve as guideposts for focusing ICPAS’ energies on 
achieving its vision and mission for the next three years. The strategic plan is timely as the Singapore government 
is looking at developing the nation as the leading international centre in Asia for accountancy services and 
professionals.

Milestones for Year 2008
The following pages cover the milestones achieved and the many activities that took place during the year.



>     ICPAS     >     annual report 2008/200914

Activities 2006 2007 2008

No. of Committees 35 35 34

No. of Meetings 74 53 57

Publications of the Institute 18 22 27

Courses and Talks 318 335 335

Conferences 1 1 1

Membership

No. of Members 18,143 19,168 20,258

Total Subscriptions $2,534,130 $2,645,770 $2,772,763

Total Secretariat’s expenses $3,280,091 $3,648,805 $3,368,310

Average Subscription per Member1 $140 $138 $137

Average expense per Member1 $181 $190 $166

Total Revenue $13,270,8522 $16,905,2902 $19,905,0162

Total expenses $11,336,3472 $13,260,8322 $14,160,6412

Share of profit of associates (Net of Tax) $41,5682 $38,8582 $12,1032

Income tax expenses $438,0092 $658,8362 $986,3402

Total surplus for the year $1,538,0642 $3,024,4802 $4,770,1382

Statistical highlights

1 This is based solely on members’ subscriptions and does not take into account other sources of income
2 Consolidated figures 
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CoNTINuING PRoFeSSIoNAl 
eduCATIoN

In the past year, the Institute continued to 
present the tools for career development 
and growth through a multitude of 
Continuing Professional Education 
(CPE) courses, forums, seminars and 
conferences. 

Institute events
• A series of Dialogue Sessions with Tax 

Practitioners

• Discussion on Revised and Redrafted 
Clarity SSA 600 and Dialogue Session 
with Practising Members

• Forum on Recent Changes to SSA 700

• Public Accountants Lunch Talk Series: 
Presentation and Disclosure Format of 
2009 Financial Statements and Some 
Pointers for 2008

• Seminar on Observations by the Financial 
Statements Review Committee

• Technical Group Discussion – Challenges 
and Issues of Implementing FRS 36: 
Impairment of Assets

• Technical Group Discussion – Discussion 
on the Practical Issues Encountered 
in Applying the Audit Manual for Small 
Companies

• Technical Group Discussion – Practical 
Issues Encountered in the Application of 
Valuation Methods used in Valuation of 
Financial Instruments

• Technical Group Discussion – The 
Revised IFAC Code of Ethics and its 
implications on Practising Members

Year-in-review

Speakers at the How Fair is Fair Value Accounting? 
seminar in February covered on the common 
issues of fair value accounting extensively.

ICPAS jointly organised the CFO Forum with 
Robert Half International in November.

ICPAS Vice-President, Dr Kan with IFAC SMP 
Committee Senior Technical Manager, Mr Paul 
Thompson, at the IFAC SMP Activities seminar in April.
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Over 200 participants gathered at a forum in April 
to raise their concerns over the changes to 
SSA 700.

CPA Forum in August looked at Risk and Return 
in volatile times.

ICPAS is ACRA’s strategic partner at the Public 
Accountants Conference 2008: Growing the 
Accountancy Sector and Profession in July.

Joint events
• Accountants as Strategic Business 

Advisor (organised by FP Consultants with 
ICPAS as one of the supporting partners)

• CFO of the Future: Driving the Business 
Forward (organised by FP Consultants 
with ICPAS as one of the supporting 
partners)

• CPA Forum 2008: Risk and Return in 
Volatile Times (jointly organised by ICPAS 
and CPA Australia)

• CFO Forum 2008 (jointly organised by 
ICPAS and Robert Half International)

• IASB Public Seminar on IFRS: A Global 
and Regional Perspective (organised by 
the Accounting Standards Council with 
ICPAS as one of the supporting partners)

• ICPAS and Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in England and Wales 
(ICAEW): How Fair is Fair Value 
Accounting seminar 

• ICPAS and Association of Small Medium 
Enterprises (ASME): Small and Medium-
Sized Accounting Practices - An Update 
on IFAC SMP Activities seminar 

• ICPAS Young Accountants Group and 
Chartered Financial Analyst Singapore 
(CFAS): Energy: Fundamentals, Hype or 
Speculation seminar

• Joint ICPAS-Audit Committee Guidance 
Committee (ACGC) Dialogue

• Public Accountants Conference 2008: 
Growing the Accountancy Sector and 
Profession (organised by the Accounting 
and Corporate Regulatory Authority of 
Singapore (ACRA) with ICPAS as the 
strategic partner)

CPe
A total of 245 seminars, five lunch talks and 
twelve CPA dinner talks were held in 2008.

Year-in-review
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VoICe oF The PRoFeSSIoN

The Institute works with all its stakeholders, 
including government decision makers, 
employers, the media and the general 
public, to generate awareness about the 
accountancy profession. 

Government and Key Stakeholders
Over the past year, the Institute has 
been working closely with Accounting 
Standards Council (ASC) in reviewing new 
accounting exposure drafts and setting 
accounting standards. We also played a 
pivotal role in influencing policy makers on 
behalf of members by actively engaging in 
dialogue sessions with various government 
institutions and industry regulators.

On 9 January, representatives from the 
Accounting Standards Committee had 
a meeting with Monetary Authority of 
Singapore (MAS) and Singapore Exchange 
(SGX) to discuss the withdrawal of RAP 9 
IPO costs. It was noted that RAP 9 was 
previously introduced to provide clarity on 
the treatment of such costs.

On 19 February and 16 December, 
representatives from the Banking and 
Finance Committee conducted dialogue 
sessions with MAS to discuss various 
issues relating to the banking industry and 
issues arising from the current credit crisis.

On 28 February, the Institute’s Office 
Bearers and representatives from the 
Insurance Committee had its annual 
luncheon meeting with the Insurance 
Supervision Department of MAS and 
various insurance associations, namely, 
General Insurance Association of Singapore 
(GIA), Singapore Insurance Brokers’ 
Association (SIBA), and Singapore 

Reinsurers’ Association (SRA), for an 
exchange of views on matters relating to 
accounting and the insurance industry.  

In May and November, the Institute and 
other professional bodies participated in 
dialogue sessions with ACRA, on top of 
the Institute’s own quarterly dialogues with 
ACRA, to discuss issues of concern and to 
touch base on developments relating to the 
accounting profession.

On 27 August, representatives from the 
Taxation and Levies Committee had a 
dialogue session with Inland Revenue 
Authority of Singapore (IRAS) to touch base 
on various taxation issues.

On 1 December, Vice-President Dr Ernest 
Kan was appointed to the Committee to 
Develop the Accountancy Sector (CDAS) 
by Ministry of Finance. Three of our Council 
members, Mr Kon Yin Tong, Mr Sitoh 
Yih Pin and Professor Pang Yang Hoong 
have also been appointed to CDAS in 
their respective capacity. This Committee 
has been established to embark on a 
fundamental review of the accountancy 
sector, with the objective of positioning 
Singapore as the premier global hub in Asia 
for accountancy services and professionals. 
The members of the CDAS comprise top 
members of the accounting profession, the 
business community, academia and the 
public sector.

Auditing
The Institute’s Auditing and Assurance 
Standards Committee (AASC) continued to 
review and issue auditing promulgations. 
Auditing standards known as Singapore 
Standards on Auditing (SSAs) and audit 
practice statements known as Statements 
of Auditing Practice (SAPs) are harmonised 

Year-in-review
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with international equivalent International 
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and 
International Auditing Practice Statements 
(IAPSs) respectively issued by International 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board 
(IAASB) of International Federation of 
Accountants (IFAC). The AASC also issues 
Audit Guidance Statements (AGSs) as best 
practice statements to provide assistance 
to auditors on matters of relevance not 
covered by SSAs or SAPs.

ASeAN Federation of Accountants 
(AFA)
The AFA Council quarterly meetings in 
March, June and October 2008 and 
January 2009 were attended by the 
Institute’s Office Bearers, Mr Tan Boen Eng, 
Dr Ernest Kan and Mr Khoo Ho Tong, who 
is also AFA’s Treasurer, with AFA formalising 
its 2008-2011 Strategic and Operational 
Plan and ICPAS pledging its support in 
meeting the Federation’s objectives.

AFA looked at forming a permanent secretariat to better dispense the roles and 
functionalities of the Federation at the 94th AFA Council Meeting in Laos in June.

Tax practitioners were urged to provide feedback 
to IRAS at the dialogue session organised by 
ICPAS Taxation and Levies Committee in August.

Corporate Partners
The Institute was proud to be the partner 
organisation for the Singapore Corporate 
Awards (SCA), an annual event that honours 
exemplary companies and individuals that 
have helped to raise Singapore’s standard 
of corporate disclosure and governance. 

Year-in-review
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SAA Training Director Mr Evan Law (left) signed 
the MoU to offer ICAEW’s ACA qualification in 
Singapore.

INTeRNATIoNAl ReCoGNITIoN

To increase our international footprint, the 
Institute remains relentless in its efforts to 
engage overseas professional bodies.

On 8 April, the Institute signed an 
Agreement of Co-operation (AoC) with 
Chinese Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (CICPA) in Beijing. The two 
national accountancy bodies will cooperate 
in areas like training and professional 
development activities. Continuing 
Professional Education (CPE), run jointly or 
individually by either ICPAS or CICPA, will 
be mutually recognised. 

ICPAS and Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in England and Wales 
(ICAEW) signed a memorandum of 
understanding (MoU) to offer ICAEW’s 
internationally recognised Associated 
Chartered Accountant (ACA) qualification 
in Singapore. This agreement between 
the two accountancy bodies will, for the 
first time, enable ICAEW’s ACA students 
to study for the qualification in Singapore. 
The two Institutes will share information 
and experiences, and work together to 
produce qualified accountants that will play 
an important role in the future growth of the 
local economy and the development of the 
accountancy profession internationally.

2008 saw several international professional 
bodies and government officials visiting the 
Institute to further our existing relationships 
and explore opportunities to grow the 
accountancy profession globally.

January CPA Australia 
 Mr Alex Malley    
 (National President)
 Mr Jeff Hughes    
 (General Manager)

  Jordan Audit bureau
 Dr Mahmoud AL-Khalialeh   
 (Secretary General)
 Mr. Khaled AL Adwan   
 (Executive Assistant)
 Miss Tha’era Arabyat   
 (Consultant)

March Malaysian Institute of   
 Accountants

 Mr Nik Mohd Hasyudeen   
 Yusoff      
 (President)
 Mr Lim Seong On    
 (Head, Practice Review)
 Mr Khairul Azmi Rezo   
 (Manager, International Affairs  
 & Special Projects)

Year-in-review
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  department of Public 
 Accounts Ministry of   
 Finance,  bhutan

 Mr Nim Dorji   
 (Director and members   
 of delegation)

 The Institute of Chartered  
  Accountants in Australia
 Mr Andrew Arkell
 (President)
 Mr Graham Meyer 
 (CEO)
 Mr Len Cain
 (Vice Chairman, Singapore   
  Members Group)

 Financial bureau    
 department and Taxation
 bureau of Jiangsu, China

April The Chartered Institute of  
  Management Accountants
 Mr Robert Jelly    
 (Director of Education)
 Ms Tam Kam Peng    
 (Head of CIMA Learning   
 Partnership)
 Ms Sopiah Suid    
 (Divisional Director)

The Cambodian government officials were able to gain a better understanding of the 
accounting profession in Singapore through their visit in July.

July National Accounting Council,  
 Ministry of economy &   
 Finance, Cambodia
 Mr Lay Buntha
 Mr Bou Tharin
 Mr Seam Monileak

September The Institute of Chartered  
 Accountants in Australia
 Mr Graham Meyer    
 (CEO)
 Mr Len Cain    
 (Vice-President, International)

october Kenya Accountants and   
 Secretaries examination   
 board
 Mr Joe Mbuthia    
 (Board Member and Member  
 of the Examination Committee)
 Mr Erasto Mukuria    
 (Senior Examination Officer)
 Mr Benard Njiru    
 (Senior Examination Officer) 

Year-in-review
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eNhANCed VAlue FoR MeMbeRS

To cater to the vast interest of accounting 
professionals, the Institute continued to roll 
out varied members activities and provided 
opportunities for them to interact and build 
worthwhile business contacts through 
networking and social activities.

Member benefits and Privileges
Members enjoyed close to 36 dining, 
shopping and personal grooming offers 
from popular merchants in 2008.

At the same time, the weekly ePublication 
was renamed CPA Singapore Wire and 
enhanced with a fresh look and new 
sections including Feature, Highlights and 
Online Poll, to provide members with more 
news and information in the accounting and 
finance arena.

Member Activities
Over 49 events, including fashion and 
grooming workshops, culinary and sporting 
classes, fengshui talks and personal 
development seminars, networking 
evenings and movie screenings, were 
organised for members.  

In addition, the Institute also organised the 
following social events for members:

• Family Day on board the Cheng Ho Cruise

• An Evening Drive Time with Lexus

• ICPAS Annual Dinner & Dance 2008 
– “The ICPAS Championships” in October 

• Speechcraft 2008
 
• CPA Games 2008 

ICPAS Dinner & Dance in late October. The Lexus Open House treated members to an evening of great 
food, good networking opportunities and the priority to test drive 
the latest models.

Year-in-review
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GRowING The MeMbeRShIP bASe

The Institute is committed to developing, 
supporting and enhancing the CPA 
Singapore designation, which provides our 
members with the professional recognition, 
status and prestige they deserve. Attracting 
new members is vital to the continued 
growth of the Institute, thus a series of 
marketing and branding initiatives were 
deployed throughout the year to position 
CPA Singapore as the designation of choice 
for both employees and employers.

All smiles for the overall champion, Pricewaterhouse Coopers, at the CPA Games 
Dinner in November.

The balmy weather was the perfect backdrop for 
members celebrating ICPAS Family Day in August.

Members expressed their creativity at a Floral 
Arrangement workshop.

Over eighty members and guests chilled out at the ICPAS-
Hudson ‘From Ledgers to Leisure’ session at Oosters.

The Global Markets: All Doom & Gloom, a panel discussion by IPAC Financial Planning, 
looked at how overcoming basic instincts can help tide through volatile investment markets.

Members signed up for two sell-out Seoul Cooking 
classes.

Year-in-review
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Raising the profile of CPA Singapore 
The Institute continued to raise the profile 
of CPA Singapore through its aggressive 
branding campaign in 2008. 

A series of advertisements featuring the key 
messages of “Stay Ahead of the Pack” and 
“Evolve Your Career with CPA Singapore” 
were publicised through various media 
platforms including print, outdoor and online.

The Institute was constantly seen and 
heard across all media channels through 
interviews and soundbites given by 
prominent ICPAS representatives and  
CPAs Singapore.

Thought leadership 
To further promote the brand and to 
demonstrate the thought leadership role 
of ICPAS, the Institute rolled out a series 
of initiatives such as CPA Singapore 
Roundtable, CPA Singapore Business 
Confidence Survey and more.

CPA Singapore Roundtable brings together 
CPAs Singapore and industry leaders to 
discuss a broad array of topical issues 
and subjects that are important to the 
accountancy profession and the business 

community. The inaugural roundtable on 
23 May looked at Cutting the F-word in 
Accounting, i.e. how accountants can 
detect and prevent fraud in the workplace.

In CPA Singapore Business Confidence 
Survey, the Institute surveyed its members 
on what they think of the business climate 
in Singapore. The scoreboard is 
constructed from responses to a survey 
of CPAs Singapore and accounting 
professionals. It offers an insight into what 
the significant players in the business 
community are thinking. 

Marketing the CPA Singapore designation
In October, the Institute sponsored 
Asia Business Case Competition 2008, 
organised by Nanyang Technological 
University (NTU). Twelve teams from 
universities in Canada, Ireland, New 
Zealand, Thailand and the United States of 
America participated, and the local team 
from NTU comprised all accountancy 
undergraduates. 
 
Career talks were conducted in NTU and 
Singapore Management University (SMU) 
during the third quarter of 2008, with  
CPAs Singapore sharing their valuable 

CPA Singapore print 
advertisement

CPA Singapore outdoor advertisement at 
Raffles Place.

ICPAS Vice-President Dr Kan being interviewed 
by ChannelNews Asia and 938LIVE.

Year-in-review
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experience to over five hundred 
accountancy undergraduates.
 
At the NTU Convocation for accountancy 
graduates in July, the Institute advised 
on the various benefits and privileges of 
ICPAS membership and handled queries on 
becoming a CPA Singapore. 
 
To establish a long-term presence in SMU, 
ICPAS signed an exclusive year-long 
sponsorship with student body, Accounting 
Society (ASOC). This initiative will allow 
ICPAS to forge a closer relationship with 
accountancy undergraduates, participating 
in student events such as Gala Dinner, 
Chinese New Year Dinner, Freshman 
Camp, and ASOC Day. This also enhanced 
exposure of the Institute and the CPA 
Singapore designation. 
 
Working closely with specialist recruitment 
firms, ICPAS jointly organised networking 
and social activities for members, with the 
two most successful events being Chill-out 
Evening (co-organised with Hudson) and 
the dinner-cum-movie screening of Indiana 

Jones and the Kingdom of the Crystal Skull 
(co-organised with Kerry Consulting).

The Institute ran a campaign in July to 
augment ICPAS’ presence in the commerce 
sector and pave the way for ICPAS to reach 
out to corporations in the Central Business 
District.  A couple of chill-out sessions were 
also co-organised with recruitment firms to 
enable our members to explore business 
opportunities and establish contacts 
through such networking sessions.

ICPAS surpassed its membership milestone 
in 2008 and welcomed its 20,000th member, 
Ms Clara Pang, in September.  As the 
largest professional body in Singapore, 
many of ICPAS’ members helm some of 
the most prominent local and international 
companies. The broad membership boasts 
a vast bank of networking opportunities 
that can help members connect with the 
industry’s most powerful decision makers.

ICPAS welcomed its 20,000th member,
 Ms Clara Pang, in September.

The Career Talk at SMU in September was well-received by 
accountancy undergraduates.

Year-in-review

The turnout at the Career Talk at NTU in 
September was over-whelming.
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MeMbeRShIP 

The Institute’s membership promotional 
efforts have paid off as there is a steady 
increase in membership growth rate of 
more than 5.7 per cent in 2008 over 2007, 
as compared to 5.6 per cent in 2007 over 
2006, surpassing the 20,000 mark in 
September 2008.
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deVeloPING ACCouNTANCY 
eduCATIoN

ICPAS remains committed to meet the 
needs of the accountancy industry by 
providing quality education and training 
through Singapore Accountancy Academy 
(SAA), the training arm of the Institute. 

In 2008, SAA strengthened its position to 
serve the Institute’s members as well as 
its students through various programmes.  
With its continued focus on delivering 
quality education, SAA saw a record 
increase in enrollment for several of its 
programmes.

To cater to the growing pool of students, 
SAA expanded its Main Campus at Aljunied 
Road by 13,000 square feet, through the 
rental of additional office space at the 
adjacent building, KH Plaza. The latest 
expansion increased its total campus floor 
space by thirty per cent. With this new 
extension, SAA’s Main Campus now has a 
total of twelve training rooms, suitably sized 
for fifty to 180 students each. This extension 
is especially timely as the economy goes 
into recession and working professionals, 
particularly those in the accounting, banking 
and financial services industries, consider 
going back to school to retrain, in an 
attempt to ride out the credit crunch.

Currently, SAA has over five thousand 
students taking its accountancy, finance 
and business-related courses. This latest 
expansion will allow the Academy to 
increase its offering of accounting and 
finance related degree programmes, 
professional qualifications and Continuing 
Professional Education workshops  
and seminars.

ICPAS believes that a robust tax community 
hinges on the competence, quality and 
effectiveness of tax agents. It is therefore in 
the interest of every agent to be armed with 
the current and best practices especially in 
this increasingly complex world. In view of 
this, the Institute was pleased to support 
the Tax Agent Education Framework, 
initiated by Tax Academy of Singapore to 
empower tax agents with the knowledge 
and tools to deliver greater value to their 
clients. For ICPAS members, the Institute 
will subsidise fifteen per cent of the course 
fees, meaning, tax agents from firms with 
fifty staff or less in their tax departments 
and who are ICPAS members will enjoy a 
subsidy of 65 per cent of the course fees. 

To help assimilate the many foreign students at 
SAA into the Singapore society, the Academy 
hosted them to an orientation and city tour. 

SAA is committed to continuous improvement and 
conducts regular focus groups to get feedback on lecturing 
excellence and service standards.

Year-in-review

The new training rooms at KH Plaza provide 
students with a more conducive and nurturing 
learning environment.
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Good CoRPoRATe CITIzeNShIP

The Institute is committed to corporate 
social responsibility and serving both 
member and public interest.  ICPAS 
endeavours to be a good corporate citizen, 
contributing to charities and organising 
community projects to enrich the lives of the 
less privileged in our society.

Community Service
The Community Service Committee (CSC) 
organised the following activities:

• Annual Christmas Outing 2008

• Annual Reach-Out 2009

In addition, the following charitable efforts 
were initiated:

• Singapore Red Cross Society Donation 
Drive for Myanmar cyclone victims

• Donation to Red Cross Society of China 
for Sichuan earthquake victims

• Singapore Red Cross Society Donation 
Drive for Sichuan earthquake victims

• Fundraising for Society for the Prevention 
of Cruelty to Animals

• Temasek Polytechnic Overseas 
Community Service Project (Bintan, 
Indonesia)

ICPAS also supported the following event:

• Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore 
Charity Walk and Bidding for 
Commemorative Books

Scholarship and Awards
ICPAS has always been actively involved 
in the development of accountancy 
education in Singapore. In this regard, the 
Institute presented the ICPAS Gold Medal 
to the most outstanding accountancy 
students from Nanyang Technological 
University (NTU), Singapore Management 
University (SMU), Ngee Ann, Singapore and 
Temasek Polytechnics in 2008. ICPAS also 
awarded the ICPAS Scholarship Awards 
to two second-year and one final-year 
Accountancy undergraduates from Nanyang 
Business School at NTU and two third-year 
and two final-year students from School of 
Accountancy at SMU.  Additionally, ICPAS 
Book Prizes were conferred to two students 
from NTU and Ngee Ann Polytechnic.

ICPAS President Mr Tan gives out the ICPAS 
Scholarship to Ms Lim Cai Yun, second year 
Accountancy undergraduate from NTU.

CSC Chairperson Ms Wong Lai Yong (centre) 
leading the carolling session at the Annual 
Christmas Outing in December 2008.

ICPAS members and staff spread festive cheer at 
Annual Reach-Out in January 2009.

Year-in-review
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Powered by capable individuals, 
the Institute leverage on their strengths to surge forward, 
capitalising on opportunities and actualising its vision.

>
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ACCA Committee
Ernest Kan – Chairman Ng Song Piak
Don Ho – Deputy Chairman Quek Shi Kui
Robin Chia Jayapal Ramasamy
Lee Chee Wung Paul Tan
Jocelyn Lim Yim Kam May

The partnership between ICPAS and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) remained strong as 
both entities worked in close tandem to publicise the Joint Examination Scheme (JES) through career talks and 
events such as the Student Orientation Day held bi-annually for newly registered students. This Student Orientation 
Day allowed students to appreciate the roles ICPAS and ACCA play in the JES. It also served to remind students 
the ultimate goal of becoming a CPA Singapore upon completing their examinations.

The ICPAS/ACCA Graduation Ceremony was another bi-annual event conducted for graduates of the December 
2007 and June 2008 examination sessions. 

Through the ICPAS/ACCA Student Society, ICPAS continued to mentor its members through the organisation of a 
host of social and study-related student activities. Examples of such activities include:
• Interactive talks on Financial Reporting Standards and ACCA Practical Experience Requirement
• Robert Half International information sessions
• Movie screenings
• Mid-Autumn Festival celebration
 

Accounting Standards Committee
Fang Ai Lian – Chairperson Kok Moi Lre (appointed on 20.08.08)
Ernest Kan – Deputy Chairman Kon Yin Tong
Akhtar, Sajjad Peter Low (resigned on 20.08.08)
Ang Hao Yao Ng Eng Juan
Esther Bay (appointed on 18.06.08) Nagaraj Sivaram 
Boon Yoon Chiang Ong Sim Ho 
Chia Siew Eng Tan Boon Siong
Evelyn Chin Pearl Tan
Foong Daw Ching Henry Tan
Goh Ann Nee  Teo Cheow Tong 
Shanker Iyer Yeo Ek Khuan

With the enactment of the Accounting Standards Act on 27 August 2007, the Accounting Standards Council (ASC) 
was formed to take over the task of prescribing accounting standards from the Council on Corporate Disclosure 
and Governance. 

The Committee continued to work closely with ASC in reviewing new accounting proposals and setting Financial 
Reporting Standards (FRSs). The FRSs are virtually converged with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs) and International Accounting Standards (IASs) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Committees’ Review
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As of 31 December 2008, the following were issued as FRSs and Interpretations subsequent to the Institute’s 
recommendations:

• Revised FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

• INT FRS 113 Customer Loyalty Programmes

• INT FRS 114 – FRS 19 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

• INT 116 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

During the year, the Committee also deliberated on the following IFRSs, amendments to IASs/IFRSs, revised 
implementation guidance and Interpretations issued by IASB/International Financial Reporting Interpretations 
Committee (IFRIC). Corresponding revisions and/or amendments were made to FRSs and INT FRSs:  

• FRS 102 Share-based Payment: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

• FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Puttable Financial 
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

• FRS 101 First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards and FRS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements – Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

• Amendments to FRSs – Improvements to FRSs

• FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 
Reclassification of Financial Assets 

• FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – Eligible Hedged Items

• ED of Chapter 1 & 2 of Joint Improved Conceptual Framework

• ED D23 Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners

• ED D24 Customer Contributions

• ED FRS 101 Additional Exemptions for First –Time Adopters

• ED FRS 105 Discontinued Operations

• ED FRS 107 Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
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The following IASB exposure drafts were considered by the ASC with representations and recommendations from 
the Committee and representatives from the relevant industries:

• Exposure Draft of Proposed Amendments to FRS 101 First-Time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards 
and FRS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements: Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly 
Controlled Entity or Associate

• Exposure Draft of Proposed Improvements to FRS 

• Exposure Draft Simplifying Earnings Per Share: Proposed Amendments to FRS 33

The Committee reviewed the above proposals and prepared comment letters taking into account the comments 
received. The comment letters were forwarded to the Council for approval and/or comments and to the ASC for 
submission to IASB as appropriate.

At its meetings, the Committee made presentations on the IASB/IFRIC exposure drafts, to which ASC members 
and representatives were invited. The purpose of the presentations is to facilitate understanding of the technical 
issues and implications of the accounting standards and proposals.

The Committee also provided views on the following:

• IASB Discussion Paper on Preliminary Views on Financial Statement Presentation

• IASB Discussion Paper on Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Equity

• IASB Discussion Paper on Reducing Complexity in Financial Reporting

• IASB Discussion Paper on Preliminary Views on amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits

• IASB Discussion Paper on Preliminary Views on an Improved Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

• ASC’s Public Consultation on Proposed Framework for Differential Reporting

• IASB Discussion Paper on Public Accountability and the Composition of the IASB

• ASC’s Public Consultation on the draft accounting proposals and reporting requirements pertaining to Charities 
and Institutions of a Public Character (IPCs) in Singapore 

The following Statement on Recommended Accounting Practice (RAP) has been withdrawn:

• RAP 9 IPO Costs
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The withdrawal is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.

Accreditation Committee
Tan Boen Eng – Chairman Lim Boon Cheng
Gerard Ee Pang Yang Hoong
Ernest Kan Gillian Yeo
Kevin Kwok Yeoh Oon Jin

The Committee met to discuss issues with regards to the Mutual Recognition Agreement (MRA) between the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICA-India) and the Institute. There are still fundamental differences to be 
resolved.
 
The Committee reviewed the annual report of the National University of Singapore’s Bachelor of Business 
Administration (Accountancy) programme, which was granted provisional accreditation in 2008. 

ATTS Committee
Khoo Ho Tong – Chairman N Vimala Devi 
Tan Boen Eng – Deputy Chairman Andy Seah
Chee Kim Hock Yee Fook Hong

For the year, the Committee meetings were focused on evaluating the outcomes of the Association of Taxation 
Technicians Singapore (ATTS) examinations and confirming the operational policies and processes of ATTS.

Three forums were held in total for ATTS students and members, principally spearheaded by Inland Revenue 
Authority of Singapore and other invited tax practitioners as speakers. In order to widen our reach to more tax 
support staff, the forums were opened to various accounting firms located within Singapore. The response for the 
forums exceeded expectations, amassing almost four hundred participants. With such good response from firms 
and students alike, the Committee will continue to offer these forums in 2009. 

The ATTS Annual Tea Reception was held in April 2008 to:

• Present the certificates to graduates, prize-winners and merit awardees for the June and December 2007 
examinations.

• Promote full membership status to graduates.
• Enhance ATTS’ professional image.
• Develop business networks amongst students, lecturers and committee members.

In total, 85 guests and graduates attended the event, presided over by former ATTS Committee Chairman, Mr Noris Ong.  

In addition, an ATTS Graduate Employment Survey was conducted to assess if graduates had been successful in 
achieving their career or education goals after completion of their ATTS programmes. An overwhelming 95 per cent 
of respondents shared that the ATTS Diploma in Taxation had indeed assisted their careers.
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Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee
Ernest Kan – Chairman  Julie Ng
Yeoh Oon Jin – Deputy Chairman  Premila Gowri Shankar (appointed on 18.06.08)
Shariq Barmaky  Siew Wun Mui
Sabina Cheong  Tan Wee Khim
Foo See Liang  Reggie Thein
Kate Ho – Observer  Joseph Toh
Kuan Cheng Tuck  Valerie Tong
Maria Lee   Lucas Tran Phuoc
Paul Lee  Anna Irene Wong-Yeow
Lim Boon Cheng  Yeo Boon Chye

On 3 April 2008, the Committee organised Forum on Recent Changes to SSA 700. The forum focused on the 
revisions to the content of the auditor’s report.

During the year, the Institute’s Council, on the recommendation of the Committee, approved the following:

• Revised IRAS sample auditor’s reports (Appendices 2C, 2D and 2H of Audit Guidance Statement (AGS) 1 
Sample Auditor’s Reports)

• Revised AGS on “Audit of Solicitors’ Accounts” (Appendix 1 of AGS 5 Audits of Entities in Specific Industries, 
Professions or Vocations)

• Revised sample auditor’s reports on branches (Appendices 1D, 1G and 10 of AGS 1)

• Revision of effective dates of first set of clarity Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSAs) to 15 December 2009

• Amendments to form and content of SSA 700 The Independent Auditor’s Report on a Complete Set of General 
Purpose Financial Statements

• Revised sample auditor’s report on EDAS Scheme (EDB) (Appendix 5A of AGS 1)

• Consequential amendments arising from the amended SSA 700 – SSA 800, SSRSs and SSREs

• Amendments to SSREs 2400 and 2410

• SSA 600 (Revised and Redrafted), Special Considerations - Audits of Group Financial Statement (Including the 
Work of Component Auditors)

• SSA 230 (Redrafted), Audit Documentation

• SSA 260 (Revised and Redrafted), Communication with Those Charged with Governance
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• SSA 720 (Redrafted), The Auditor’s Responsibility in Relation to Other Information in Documents Containing 
Audited Financial Statements

• SSA 540 (Revised and Redrafted), Auditing Accounting Estimates, Including Fair Value Accounting Estimates, 
and Related Disclosures; and conforming amendments to SSA 240 (Redrafted), The Auditor’s Responsibilities 
Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements

• SSA 560 (Redrafted), Subsequent Events

• SSA 580 (Revised and Redrafted), Written Representations

• Revised AGS 1 Sample Auditor’s Reports - consequential amendments arising from the amended SSA 700

The following auditing pronouncement has been withdrawn:

• Appendix 2F of AGS 1

As of 31 December 2008, the Committee was considering issues in relation to proposed new or revised auditing 
pronouncements on the following matters:

• Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagements

• Analytical Procedures

• Assurance Reports on Controls at a Third Party Service Organisation

• Audit Considerations Relating to an Entity Using a Third Party Service Organisation

• Audit Evidence Regarding Specific Financial Statement Account Balances and Disclosures

• Audit Sampling

• Comfort Letters and Other Assistance for Public Offerings of Equity Securities in Singapore

• Communicating Deficiencies in Internal Control

• Comparative Information - Corresponding Figures and Comparative Financial Statements

• Considering the Relevance and Reliability of Audit Evidence

• Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter(s) Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report

• Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements

• Evaluation of Misstatements Identified during the Audit

• External Confirmations
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• Going Concern

• Initial Audit Engagements - Opening Balances

• Materiality in Planning and Performing an Audit

• Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report

• Overall Objective of the Independent Auditor, and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with Singapore 
Standards on Auditing

• Quality Control for an Audit of Financial Statements

• Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Statements, and Other Assurance and 
Related Services Engagements

• Related Parties

• Special Considerations - Audits of Special Purpose Financial Statements and Specific Elements, Accounts or 
Items of a Financial Statement

• The Auditor’s Consideration of the Internal Audit Function

• The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Laws and Regulations in an Audit of Financial Statements

• The Independent Auditor’s Report on General Purpose Financial Statements

• Using the Work of an Auditor’s Expert

During the year, the Institute provided its comments on various exposure drafts issued by the International Auditing 
and Assurance Standards Board (IAASB) of International Federation of Accountants (IFAC).

In August 2008, the Institute submitted a comment letter to Singapore Exchange Limited on its Consultation Paper 
on Proposed Amendments to the Listing Rules.

The international trend in the standard-setting process is to have an oversight body over standard-setters, so 
as to achieve better credibility and transparency in the due process.  This instills greater public confidence in the 
standard-setting process.  

Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) is responsible for the control and regulation of the practice 
of the profession of accountancy by public accountants and accounting entities. Public Accountants Oversight 
Committee (PAOC) is responsible for assisting ACRA in the discharge of this duty.  ACRA adopts the standards 
issued by ICPAS and in doing so, undertakes oversight of the process followed by ICPAS in developing and issuing 
the standards.
  
The objective of PAOC’s oversight over the Committee is to ensure that the development of the auditing standards, 
to be adopted by ACRA, is robust and credible, and promotes public confidence in the process of setting auditing 
standards.
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The composition of the Committee currently mirrors that of IAASB of IFAC. ACRA’s representative on the 
Committee is in the capacity as an observer.  The membership of the Committee will be on a rotation basis to bring 
fresh perspectives to the Committee’s deliberations.    

Banking & Finance Committee
Fang Ai Lian – Chairperson Dominic Nixon
Chua Kim Chiu – Deputy Chairman Ong Ai Boon
Cheng Ai Phing Wilson Woo
Prakash Ambelal Desai Yap Chee Meng
Leong Kok Keong 

The Committee worked with the Accounting Standards Committee in considering the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) Exposure Drafts and Interpretations:

• Reclassification of Financial Assets: Amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7

• ED FRS 107 Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

During the year, the Committee also worked with the Accounting Standards Committee to deliberate on the 
following IFRSs, amendments to IASs/IFRSs. Corresponding revisions/amendments were made to FRSs:  

• FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Puttable Financial 
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

• FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement – Eligible hedged items.

The Committee also provided views on the following:

• IASB Discussion Paper on Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Equity

In its continual efforts to engage the relevant authorities to discuss and resolve issues in the banking and finance 
industry, the Committee had a dialogue session with Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) in December 2008. 
Several issues, including Collective Impairment under MAS Notice 612, MAS’s perspectives on the financial crisis, 
external auditors’ focus on year-end audits and directives by MAS on the levels of provision required by banks, 
were discussed.

Board of Education and Examiners
Gillian Yeo – Chairperson Lian Wee Cheow
Cheung Pui Yuen Pang Yang Hoong
Chew Tong Gunn 
 
The Committee streamlined the Institute’s Continuing Professional Education (CPE) guidelines to align it with the 
International Federation of Accountants IES Standards and to maintain the professional competence of professional 
accountants. The ICPAS PE examining team for the various modules was restructured with the Committee’s 
recommendation and approval.
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During the year, the Committee assessed and successfully accredited the following Australian undergraduate 
degree programmes. Graduates of the accredited degree programmes have the added assurance of meeting the 
core subject requirements provided that they have attempted and passed the recommended subjects at the point 
of application.  The accreditation would serve as a guide for undergraduates to decide what units to take in order 
for them to be admitted as PE candidates.

Monash University 
Bachelor of Commerce with Accounting Major (Clayton Campus)
Bachelor of Accounting (Clayton Campus)
Bachelor of Business with Accounting Major (Caulfield Campus)
Bachelor of Business and Commerce with Accounting Major (Sunway Campus)
Bachelor of Business and Commerce with Accounting Major (Berwick, Gippsland & Peninsula Campuses) 

Deakin University
Bachelor of Commerce

The Committee continued to focus on developing ICPAS PE into an esteemed qualification with global recognition. 
The assessment guidelines were reviewed and fine-tuned. In 2008, the Committee has assessed close to three 
hundred applications and the number of candidates for ICPAS PE has increased by forty per cent. 

CAT Committee
Tan Boen Eng – Chairman Peter Ooi
Khoo Ho Tong – Deputy Chairman Teo Hui Leng
Angela Lim

Enrolment for Singapore Accountancy Academy’s (SAA) Certified Accounting Technician (CAT) programme has 
been increasing steadily in the last four years.  This year, enrolment increased by 62 per cent due to a sharp 
increase in students under the Skill Development Fund (SDF) and Surrogate Employer Programme (SEP).  Under 
these schemes, students are eligible for eighty to ninety per cent of funding for their course fees.  

There was a total of 1,703 new student members joining the CATS/ACCA joint scheme, bringing the total number 
of registered student members to 3,794. 

The number of graduates was 392 and there was a steady increase in the number of CATS Full members. The 
current membership strength is 398 for both Ordinary and Senior Members.

CFO Committee
Soh Gim Teik – Chairman  Grace Goh
Loo Wen Lieh – Deputy Chairman   Jong Voon Hoo 
Chow Kam Wing   Siew Peng Yim

The Committee continued to provide a platform to address the professional needs of the Institute’s members by 
organising and participating in conferences, workshops, roundtable discussions and networking sessions for Chief 
Financial Officers (CFOs), Financial Controllers, Finance Directors etc. 
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During the year, the Committee supported events organised by external parties on topics related to CFOs, such as 
Accountants as Strategic Business Advisors.

During the year, the Chairman also represented the Institute as a member of the Professional Accountants in 
Business (PAIB) Committee of International Federation of Accountants (IFAC). This PAIB Committee comprised 
members from eighteen bodies from various countries and its work, among others, comprised the review and issue 
of practice guides, conducting relevant international surveys, and various discussions, etc. The PAIB meetings are 
held twice a year and topics discussed include the financial crisis to governance in organisations and business 
reporting. Presently, the Chairman is a team member for the project on the roles, domains and competencies of 
professional accountants in business. 

The Committee also agreed that it would be useful to hold relevant forums or seminars for the general ICPAS-PAIB 
members, of which one such seminar is scheduled in first quarter of 2009.

China Committee
Tan Boen Eng – Chairman Max Loh
Sitoh Yih Pin – Deputy Chairman Joshua Ong
Teo Meng Hua – Deputy Chairperson Seah Gek Choo
Victor Goh (appointed 20.8.08) Wong Lai Yong
Khoo Ho Tong Yong Cherng Nan
Lim Lian Soon Jason Yow

The Committee hosted a group of thirty officials visiting from Changsu City, Jiangsu Province, China, on 27 March 
2008. These delegates are mostly officers from the Financial Bureau Department and Taxation Bureau of Jiangsu. 
The objectives of the trip were to attend a training course on the Singapore Government’s Financial Development 
and Taxation Policies and explore opportunities to promote bilateral cooperation between the two sides. The 
Committee delivered a presentation about the function of the Institute and had an extensive discussion with the 
delegates with regards to the financial and taxation environments in Singapore.

Community Service Committee
Wong Lai Yong – Chairperson  Alvin Phua 
Robin Chia Tan Lee Choo
Helen Lee Tang Shiuh Huei 
Henry Lim Elsie Wong
Grace Ling Micolle Yeo
David Loh 

The Committee initiated the following community efforts:

Christmas Outing
The Institute shared Christmas joy with sixty beneficiaries from Lions Befrienders Service Association (Singapore) 
on 3 December 2008. The senior citizens cruised down Orchard Road to admire the Christmas lightings before 
adjourning to dinner at NUSS Guild House Kent Ridge. The Committee members took to the stage with Christmas 
songs to spread the festive cheer. 
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Annual Reach-Out 
The Reach-Out was held on 4 January 2009 in conjunction with Chinese New Year celebrations. 220 beneficiaries 
from eight Homes were invited to a sumptuous lunch at NUSS Guild House Kent Ridge. They were also treated to 
a magic show, opera and a musical performance by a ‘live’ band.

Speechcraft Workshops at Prison School
The Committee and the CPA Toastmasters Club jointly organised several Speechcraft sessions at the Prison 
School. The Speechcraft programme was designed to help participants develop public speaking and  
presentation skills. 

Corporate Finance Committee
Chaly Mah – Chairman Tham Tuck Seng
Chan Heng Toong  (appointed on 17.09.08) Raymond Tong
Tan Chian Khong Wong Kian Kok
Tham Sai Choy

The Committee considered issues relating to corporate finance matters, typically by discussing and providing input 
on matters relating to corporate finance to the regulatory authorities and other corporate finance and/or investment 
banking organisations. It also worked closely with other committees within the Institute on matters pertaining to 
accounting and auditing standards and provide input on professional issues to the standards setters.

During the year, the Committee discussed the revisions to Statement of Auditing Practice (SAP) 24 Auditors and 
Public Offering Documents, which were meant to incorporate the revised SFR changes. The issuance of the revised 
SAP 24 is pending the approval of Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority. In addition, the Committee 
considered the comments made by ICPAS on the SGX Consultation Paper on Proposed Amendments to the 
Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Committee
Ernest Kan – Chairman Rohan Kamis
Bill Bowman Lee Kin Wai
R. Dhinakaran  Steven Phan
Gerard Ee Tom Yee
Ho Yew Kee

The Committee continued to draw on the experience and expertise of the Committee members to raise awareness 
of corporate governance issues and promote fairness, transparency and accountability in the conduct of business. 

In early 2008, the Committee commissioned National University of Singapore to research on the Profile of Audit 
Committees in Singapore. The objective is to provide an understanding of the compliance of the Companies Act 
and Singapore Corporate Governance Code with respect to audit committees of listed companies in Singapore.  
It will also provide a general description of the state of audit committees of listed companies in Singapore.
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Mr Rohan Kamis also continued to represent the Institute on the judging panel of the SIAS Singapore Corporate 
Governance Awards.

During the year, the Committee provided its comments on the PAIB Committee’s Exposure Draft on Evaluating and 
Improving Governance in Organisations to IFAC. The Committee is instrumental in issuing corporate governance 
commentary statements to the media.

The Committee acknowledged the importance of its role in the development, implementation and promotion of 
sound corporate governance and will continue to participate actively in projects associated with its objectives and 
to organise relevant seminars, talks, forums and dialogues on corporate governance. 
 

CPA Australia Committee   
Loh Hoon Sun – Chairman Janice Law
Bill Bowman Lim Kim Tong
Chan Lai Koon Peter Ooi
Han Lih Lih Linda Seah
Koh Noi Keng Tan Boen Eng

The Institute worked closely with CPA Australia on several events throughout the year.

Jointly organised by ICPAS and CPA Australia on 15 August, the CPA Forum provided a platform for regulators 
and business leaders to exchange views and share their ideas with the business community. Mr Teo Ming Kian, 
Permanent Secretary for Ministry of Finance, was the Guest-of-Honour at this year’s forum. Themed Risk & Return, 
the Business Forum looked at strategic management during volatility, including safety-net measures and what new 
opportunities the current economic environment can present. The Investment Forum discussed investment trends 
and risk management during periods of uncertainty, and the impact of the US sub-prime fallout on Asian markets.

Another successful joint event is the monthly Dinner Talks held at Conrad Centennial Singapore, which drew close 
to three hundred members from both bodies.  This event received good support from members as it presented an 
opportunity for learning as well as a platform for networking among our members.

In October, thirty students and two lecturers from Diploma in Accounting & Finance of Temasek Polytechnic 
participated in an overseas community service project in Bintan, Indonesia. ICPAS and CPA Australia jointly 
sponsored $4,000 for this charitable project. This two-day outreach programme took place at Pesantren Al Ghazi, 
a small orphanage, which also provides education for local children who are unable to attend a formal school. 
This project was aimed at inculcating a spirit of care and sacrifice as well as understanding of cultural and societal 
differences through performing meaningful services for needy communities in a foreign country. 

Disciplinary Committee 
Tan Boen Eng – Chairman Steven Phan
Kon Yin Tong Sitoh Yih Pin
Lee Chee Wung Tom Yee
Loh Hoon Sun    Gillian Yeo
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The Committee dealt with four cases submitted by the Investigation Committee in 2008. Two members were 
censured, one was suspended and one member was removed from the register of members.

Ethics Committee
Danny Teoh – Chairman  Quek Shi Kui
Patrick Ang Daniel Soh
Anthony Cheong Tay Joo Soon
Don Ho Phillip Yuen

During the year, the Institute, on the recommendation of the Committee and the approval of the Council, provided 
its comments to the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA), an independent standard-
setting board within International Federation of Accountants (IFAC), on the exposure draft (issued July 2008) of 
revised IFAC Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

The changes, outlined in an exposure draft with the same title, focus on enhancing the clarity of the Code. The 
proposed changes make clear the specific requirements that are contained in the Code and refine the application of 
the Code’s conceptual framework. 

Examination Committee
Ernest Kan – Chairman Philip Lee
Daniel Chee Lim Boon Cheng
Ho Yew Kee Lim Lian Soon

The Committee continued to oversee the overall function of the ICPAS/Association of Chartered Certified 
Accountants (ACCA) Joint Examination Scheme (JES) for its ACCA Professional Entry Route (PER) and Certified 
Accounting Technician qualifications.

With the initiation of the new process of awarding exemptions to local educational institutions, the Committee 
concurred on the importance of establishing a standard set of protocols for the process of exemption accreditation. 
All applying institutions were henceforth subjected to this process, communicating the clarity and transparency of 
ICPAS/ACCA JES accreditation awards.

The Committee maintained a close working relationship with the Singapore examination team to analyse feedback 
and propose recommendations to ACCA on various solutions to improve work processes, as the quality of 
the Singapore adapted papers had to be constantly improved. The Committee carried on to approve both the 
appointments and re-appointments of examiners, assessors and inspectors for the Singapore variant and  
adapted papers. 
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Financial Statements Review Committee
Cheng Ai Phing – Chairperson  Ooi Chee Kar
Ravinthran Arumugam  Soh Kok Leong
Rick Chan Douglas Tan
Chris Choo Tan Swee Ho
Choo Eng Beng Tan Tong Kai
Hamish Christie Teo Chai Choo
Goh Swee Hong Tham Chee Soon
Ho Kok Yong  Joseph Toh
Michael Kee Wong Kian Kok
Kok Moi Lre  Wong-Yeo Siew Eng
Leong Kok Keong Woo E-Sah
Lisa Liew Yeo Boon Chye
Philip Ling Yeo Ek Khuan
Lo Wei Min

During the year, the Committee reviewed 131 sets of financial statements including newly-listed public companies 
and a selection of private limited financial statements. The Committee’s industry focus for 2008/2009 is 
shipbuilding, construction and property development, energy, commodities and financial institutions. 

These financial statements were reviewed by members working under the following sub-committees:

Sub-Committee  Chairperson               Number of Financial Statements Reviewed

Published Accounts  Cheng Ai Phing  94
Private Limited Accounts Lo Wei Min 37
   131

In the course of its reviews, the Committee highlighted to practising members, areas where the presentation or 
content of the financial statements fall short of compliance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards 
(FRSs) and other promulgations. Generally, the standard of disclosure in the financial statements has improved. 
However, it was noted that for certain sets of financial statements reviewed, practising members were found to be 
not conversant with the FRSs and pronouncements issued by the Institute in respect of the Singapore Standards 
on Auditing (SSA). These practising members were recommended to attend training courses to update themselves 
on the Standards. In addition, one member was found wanting in the discharge of his professional duties and 
subsequently referred to the ACRA for further action. 

In view of the changes to the Singapore FRSs which are effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2008, members are advised to take note of the changes and ensure their compliance in the relevant 
financial statements.

On 16 October 2008, the Committee conducted a half-day seminar on observations compiled from its reviews 
over the past twenty months on financial statements for financial periods ended in 2006 and 2007. Certain new 
and revised FRSs applicable for the years of 2007 and 2008 were also highlighted during this seminar, which was 
attended by over 350 participants from accounting firms, statutory boards and members from various industries.  
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General Purpose & Finance Committee
Tan Boen Eng – Chairman Khoo Ho Tong
Ernest Kan

During the year, the Committee dealt with administrative and financial matters relating to the Institute. The 
Committee reviewed the annual budget, annual salary adjustments and promotional exercise for staff.
 
The Committee considered and made recommendations to the Council on the presentation of ICPAS Gold, Silver 
and Merit awards to six members who had made valuable and significant contributions to the Institute and/or 
the community. It also awarded eight ICPAS Scholarship Awards to accountancy undergraduates from Nanyang 
Technological University and Singapore Management University. The awards and scholarships were presented at 
the Institute’s Annual Dinner on 10 October 2008.
 
The Committee reviewed the Information Technology Master Plan and recommended to the Council on the need to 
conduct a requirement study for the establishment of an integrated new ICPAS Enterprise System, comprising the 
ICPAS portal, customer relationship management, event management and financial management systems.
 
The Committee decided on the appointment of a strategic consultant to facilitate the Institute’s strategic thinking 
and planning exercise, with the objectives of furthering the Institute’s status as the national accounting body, 
promoting and growing the accounting profession, and providing direction and focus for the Institute in the next 
three years.
 

Information Technology Services Committee
Tang Kok Kwai – Chairman  John Seow
Lee Jeng Wah – Deputy Chairman  Sia Siew Kien
Daniel Chee Kelvin Tan
John Chin Themin Suwardy
Chong Kek Sing Thio Tse Gan
Paul Hooi Wee Phui Gam
Henry Lim

A Master Plan, outlining the Information Technology (IT) initiatives for 2008 to 2010 had been presented and 
approved by the Council. 

During the year, the following new IT initiatives were implemented:

Enterprise Backup/ Disaster Recovery Infrastructure
This was put in place to intelligently and efficiently store data, improve data protection, minimise risk, and manage 
information growth as well as increase service levels.

Master Set of Legal Terms and Conditions
This has been put in place to safeguard the Institute’s interests in all forthgoing IT procurement via Open Tender, 
demonstrating the Institute’s procurement principles of Transparency, Value for Money, Open and Fair Competition. 
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Requirement study for New Enterprise System (NES) 
Existing business processes were reviewed and streamlined with industry best practices incorporated where 
appropriate. Comprising of four components - ICPAS Portal, Customer Relationship Management System, Events 
Management System and Finance System, the seamless integrated NES will enable ICPAS to monitor trends and 
analyse information to track effectiveness of it’s programmes and services, monitor market share, membership 
growth and attrition, as well as analyse members changing needs and preferences, etc. The output of the 
requirement study serves as the implementation roadmap for the NES.

Requirement study for School Management System (SMS) 
This was conducted for a new web services enabled system to support the administration and management of 
operations of Singapore Accountancy Academy. The output of the requirement study serves as the implementation 
roadmap for the SMS.

ICPAS Website
Assisted in the facelift of the ICPAS website, in cooperation with the Communications Division of ICPAS.

Insolvency Practices Committee
Don Ho – Chairman Ramasamy Subramaniam Iyer
Tam Chee Chong – Deputy Chairman Timothy James Reid 
Aw Eng Hai Seshadri Rajagopalan
Chan Ket Teck (passed away 15.10.08) Nicky Tan
Peter Chay Tay Swee Sze
Chee Yoh Chuang Yong Cherng Nan
Victor Goh 

During the year, the Committee continued to emphasise the importance of increasing the awareness of insolvency 
practitioners on training and technical competency. 

Several of the Committee members actively devoted time and effort in the group discussion with the authorities on 
the proposed insolvency legislative changes. During the year, the legislation on Debtors Repayment Scheme was 
introduced after consulting with our members.

The Committee also contributed their comments on the proposed Code of Ethics which was based on the IFAC model.

Insurance Committee
Mak Keat Meng – Chairman Khoo Kah Siang  
Sim Hwee Cher – Deputy Chairman Phillip Tan
Paul Faulkner  Tom Yee
Jeremy Hoon Kenny Horlley Young

The Committee continued to participate actively and contribute positively to the insurance industry by providing 
feedback and recommendations on various industry matters to insurance bodies and regulators, whilst handling 
issues raised by members. 
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In July 2008, the Committee deliberated and submitted a comment letter on the Proposed Regulatory Framework 
Governing Special Purpose Reinsurance Vehicles to the Insurance Supervision Department of Monetary Authority  
of Singapore.

The Committee worked with the Committee for Commercial Entities of Accounting Standards Council in 
considering the International Accounting Standards Board discussion papers and implementation guidance on 
Preliminary Views on Insurance Contracts.

The Committee also revised the various proposed formats of the auditor’s reports currently submitted to CPF 
Board:

• Sample Independent Auditor’s Report on Agreed-Upon Procedures - Total Expense Ratio of Investment-linked 
Funds/Sub-funds (Appendix 12 of Audit Guidance Statement (AGS 1) Sample Auditor’s Reports)

• Independent Auditor’s Report Relating to “Terminated” Investment-linked Insurance Policy Sub-Fund (“ILP Sub-
Fund”) Pursuant to MAS Notice 307 (Appendix 13 of AGS 1 Sample Auditor’s Reports)

Investigation Committee  
Ernest Kan – Chairman Ong Sim Ho 
Gerard Ee Nagaraj Sivaram
Khoo Ho Tong Kelvin Tan
Lee Chow Soon – Lay Person 

During the year, the Committee dealt with five cases against its members, of which two were for misconduct, one 
for insider trading and two others who had “failed to satisfy a judgment debt or has, individually or as a partner, 
made an assignment for the benefit of creditors or has, under any resolution of creditors or order of the court or any 
deed or document, had his estate placed in liquidation for the benefit of creditors or has made any arrangement for 
the payment of a composition to creditors”.  All five cases were referred to the Disciplinary Committee.

Management Accounting Committee 
R. Dhinakaran – Chairman  B. C. Ghosh
Chan Yoke Kai Keoy Soo Earn 
Cheng Wai Fung Eric Low
Michael Chong V. Navaratnam
Chung Lai Hong 

During the year, the Committee deliberated and recommended the adoption of the following publications of the 
Professional Accountants in Business Committee of International Federation of Accountants (IFAC):

• Preface to IFAC’s International Good Practice Guidance (June 2008); and
• Project Appraisal Using Discounted Cash Flow (June 2008)

The Committee also deliberated and provided its comments to IFAC on the PAIB publication: The Crucial Roles of 
Professional Accountants in Business in Mid-Sized Enterprises. 

Committees’ Review
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Membership Committee
Khoo Ho Tong – Chairman Lee Chee Wung
Yeoh Oon Jin – Deputy Chairman Wong Lai Yong
Khoo Teng Aun Yang Ching Chao
 
The Committee was responsible for the review of membership matters and to make monthly recommendations to 
the Council on the admission of provisional and non-practising members, fellows, membership reclassifications, 
resignations, reinstatements, removal of members for non-payment of annual subscription fees and other 
related matters. 
 
The Committee also recommended the introduction of a special Pre-Admission Course (PAC) package for final 
year Accountancy students from Nanyang Technological University, Singapore Management University and ICPAS/
Assocation of Chartered Certified Accountants Joint Examination Scheme. The objectives are to enable these 
students to undertake the PAC during their studies before they join the workforce upon graduation, and hence 
relieve them of having to take leave from employers.  This special package also caters for foreign students who have 
to return to their home countries after their studies without them having to make special trips to Singapore to attend 
the PAC. 
 

Public Accounting Practice Committee
Lim Boon Cheng – Chairman Lim Lian Soon
Lee Chee Wung – Deputy Chairman Luar Eng Hwa
Lisa Liew – Deputy Chairperson Philip Siew
Michael Heng Helen Sim
Khoo Ho Tong Clement Tan
Kon Yin Tong 

The Committee considered issues relating to the public accounting arena, and participates in dialogue sessions 
with Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority and other relevant authorities to promote the interests of the 
practising members.

Many accounting practitioners are expected to face learning and implementation challenges when International 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board of International Federation of Accountants, finalises its Clarity Project, 
and when the equivalent auditing standards are issued in Singapore. The complete set of clarified ISAs would be 
effective for audits of financial statements for periods beginning on or after 15 December 2009. The Committee 
agreed that education and assistance to practising members, particularly the smaller practitioners, would be a key 
focus of the Committee’s work.

During the year, the Committee launched the Public Accountants Lunch Talk series and organised the first three 
dialogue sessions with practitioners:

• 25 August 2008: Discussion on revised and redrafted clarity SSA 600 and Dialogue Session with Practising 
Members

• 25 November 2008: Presentation and Disclosure Format of 2009 Financial Statements and Some Pointers for 
2008

• 25 February 2009: Mergers and Acquisitions of Accounting Practices

Committees’ Review
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Singapore Accountancy Academy Committee
Tan Boen Eng – Chairman Loh Hoon Sun
Ernest Kan – Deputy Chairman Quek Shi Kui
Chew Tong Gunn  Sitoh Yih Pin
Khoo Ho Tong  Yang Ching Chao

2008 was an exciting year for Singapore Accountancy Academy (SAA). New initiatives have enabled SAA to better 
position itself to serve the accountancy community.

For the Academic Programmes Division, the CAT March and September intakes were launched, targeting both 
local and international students.  New day classes for the ICPAS/Association of Chartered Certified Accountants 
Joint Examination Scheme programme were available at the city campus and tutorial courses were rolled out  
to enhance passing rates. The SAA Professional Attachment Scheme was launched for the University of  
London programme.

The Professional Education division and the Special Projects division have launched the online portal to enhance 
services.  Another milestone is the launch of the Associate Chartered Accountant Training programme.

Due to the increase in student numbers, SAA has committed an additional 13,000 square feet of office space and 
five additional training rooms at the premise located next to the Aljunied campus.

Singapore Accountant Editorial Board
Tan Boen Eng – Chairman Low Kee Yang
Tan Hun Tong – Deputy Chairman Alfred Shee
Ernest Kan Sitoh Yih Pin
Koh Hian Chye Wang Jiwei

Singapore Accountant, the bi-monthly journal of the Institute, continued to keep members abreast of ICPAS news, 
happenings, developments and updates in both the local and international accounting and business arenas. It 
remained as the main communication avenue between members and the Institute.

To better engage our growing readership and in response to the wider interest of our members, we have enriched 
the content of foundation columns that have moulded the journal over the years and introduced new sections. 

CPA Singapore Exclusive shares with members the passions and pursuits of industrious CPAs Singapore outside 
of their work. A collection of diverse opinions on topical issues relating to the profession and current business 
affairs by financial movers and shakers is captured in CPA Singapore Roundtable. Through Wealth Management, 
members can get financial planning and investment tips. To further satisfy the changing needs of our members, 
more attention has also been directed to assisting members to advance in their careers, evident in the enhanced 
section, Careers & Lifestyle, which carries articles that offers guidance to overall professional development and 
recommends books through First Look that will expand their knowledge banks.

Moving forward, we will continually improve on the journal to present relevant and timely perspective, one that 
marries the dynamism of the CPA Singapore, and the journal’s chief purpose of imparting the latest technical and 
business knowledge to the accounting profession.

Committees’ Review
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Social Committee
Yim Kam May – Chairperson Lo Wei Min
Wong Lai Yong – Deputy Chairperson Loo Wen Lieh
Michael Heng Seah Gek Choo
Ho Nai Chuen Tang Shiuh Huei
Andrew Koh Elsie Wong

The Committee organised the following social activities in 2008:

Basic Manicure and Creative Nail Art Workshop

Computer Gaming Junkie  

Antioxidant and Disease Prevention

Family Day on board the Cheng Ho Cruise

Movie Screenings
• Water Horse on 8 March
• Kungfu Panda on 6 June
• Quantum of Solace on 5 November
• Madagascar 2 – Escape to Africa on 15 November

ICPAS Annual Dinner & Dance 2008 – Formula One: ICPAS Championship

Speechcraft
The CPA Toastmasters Club held a four-part series entitled Speechcraft 2008 on 30 September, 7, 14 and 21 
October 2008. The programme, consisting both seminar training and practical workshop, was aimed at building 
confident and poised speakers. The final session was held in conjunction with CPA Toastmasters Club 21st 

Anniversary Celebration Meeting and induction of new CPA Toastmasters Club members.

Sports Committee
Yim Kam May – Chairperson Voo Chih Yeong
Belinda Neo May Wee
David Phua Rankin Brandt Yeo 

CPA Games
A total of 178 teams registered for the twenty games played this year. PricewaterhouseCoopers emerged as the 
overall Champion, with KPMG as First Runner-up and Ernst & Young as Second Runner-up. The Games concluded 
successfully with the Award Presentation cum Closing Dinner held on 21 November 2008 at Amara Hotel.

Inter-Professional Games
The Games was cancelled due to the manpower issues faced by this year’s host, Singapore Institute of Surveyors & 
Valuers. It will resume the following year.

Committees’ Review
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Task Force on Pre-Admission Course
Cheng Ai Phing – Chairperson Lim Boon Cheng
Khoo Teng Aun Patricia Tan
Lee Chee Wung Joseph Toh
Lian Wee Cheow 
  
Arising from the recommendation of the Task Force to revamp the ethics module in the Pre-Admission Course 
(PAC), a Curriculum Committee, comprising Ms Cheng Ai Phing, Mr Daniel Chee, Mr Don Ho, Mr Lim Boon 
Cheng and Mr Tom Yee, was set up. A curriculum writer was engaged and the sub-committee reviewed critically 
the course contents developed by the writer. Several meetings were held with the writer to refine the materials 
to ensure that they complied with the principles set out in the International Education Standards of International 
Federation of Accountants.
 
The revamped ethics module in the PAC would be rolled out in the second half of 2009.
 
The Task Force is exploring the possibility of developing a public practice program for would-be practitioners.

Taxation & Levies Committee
Tan Boen Eng – Co-chairman Soh Pui Ming
Sum Yee Loong – Co-chairman Angela Tan
Khoo Ho Tong Tay Hong Beng
Lo Ngai Hung Wong Lai Yong
Albert Ng Yee Fook Hong
David Jackson Sandison 

The Committee continued to deal with the interpretation and practice aspects of tax issues raised by members 
through its four meetings during the year. The Committee also provided its comments on various matters 
including the consultation papers such as:

• Public Consultation on Stamp Duties and Goods and Services Tax (Amendment) Bill 2008 by Ministry of 
Finance (MOF); and

• Public Consultation on Draft Income Tax (Amendment) Bill 2008 by MOF.

Representatives from the Committee continued to contribute articles to the Taxation column of Singapore 
Accountant.  

The Committee also organised two dialogue sessions at Singapore Accountancy Academy City Campus 
with tax practitioners to gather their feedback and/ or comments on tax issues and/or policies. Issues raised 
and discussed include company and personal taxation matters, accreditation, family investment companies, 
benefits-in-kind and Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore (IRAS)’s policies.  

In August 2008, the Committee had its regular dialogue session with IRAS to provide its feedback of tax issues. 
The Committee also submitted its proposals to MOF for Budget 2009.

Committees’ Review
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Young Accountants Group Committee
Jack Wang – Chairman  Lee Boon Teck
Michael Heng Eleanor Lee
Alex Ho Jocelyn Lim
Frank Khoo

The Committee organised the following activities in 2008:

How to Win Cooperation and Influence People – A Dale Carnegie® Workshop
Close to ninety participants learnt to hone their human relations and communication skills through this interactive 
workshop on 3 July.  They gained insight on how to build a collaborative work environment and to recognise and 
overcome the barriers that may hinder them from taking up a leadership role.  This interactive and introductory 
workshop also provided participants a glimpse into the various ways one can learn how to use credibility and 
positive image to influence people to their point of view and create alignment so they can get the results they want.
 
Career talks for Universities – Nanyang Technological University (NTU) and Singapore Management 
University (SMU)
The Committee lent their support to the Institute’s Membership Marketing and Services Division, which organised 
career talks for NTU and SMU in September. The theme for the talks was Career Options - Big 4, Banks or MNCs? 
and was conducted in a one-hour panel discussion/ dialogue session with three invited panelists who are members 
of ICPAS, each representing a different sector. Mr Ho was the facilitator for both career talks and Mr Lee Boon 
Teck, was one of the panelists.  Other panelists included Ms Gail Shan, Finance Manager, KTL Offshore Pte Ltd, Mr 
Simon Koh, Finance Director, International Power plc and Mr Allan Ng, Corporate Finance, UOB.
 
Energy: Fundamentals, Hype or Speculation?
On 1 November, the Committee co-organised a seminar with Chartered Financial Analyst Singapore to address this 
issue. Participants had the opportunity to hear from experts in this field from both local and international scenes 
who shared their wealth of knowledge in energy investment.  More than fifty participants attended this event.  

Committees’ Review
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On behalf of the Council of Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore (the “Institute”), we, Tan Boen 

Eng and Khoo Ho Tong, being the President and Treasurer respectively, do hereby state that in our opinion, the 

consolidated financial statements of the Group and financial statements of the Institute set out on pages 54 to 80 

are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting 

Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Institute as at 31 December 

2008 and of the results, changes in accumulated and miscellaneous funds and cash flows of the Group and the 

Institute for the financial year ended on that date.

 

Tan Boen Eng         Khoo Ho Tong

President         Treasurer

Date : 18 February 2009

Statement by Council
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore 
(the “Institute”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 80, which comprise the balance 
sheets of the Group and the Institute as at 31 December 2008, the income and expenditure statements, statements 
of changes in the accumulated fund and miscellaneous fund and cash flow statement of the Group and the Institute 
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

The Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with the provisions of the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes 
designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying 
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.  Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.  

Opinion
In our opinion,

(a) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial statements of the Institute are properly 
drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Institute at 31 December 2008 
and the results, changes in accumulated fund and miscellaneous fund and cash flows of the Group and the 
Institute for the year ended on that date; and

(b) the accounting and other records required by the regulations enacted under the Societies Act to be kept by the 
Institute have been properly kept in accordance with those regulations.

Baker Tilly TFWLCL
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore

Date : 18 February 2009

Independent Auditor’s Report 
To members of Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore
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         Group         Institute

Note 2008 2007 2008 2007

             $                $              $              $

Fee income for the year

Members’ annual fees 2,772,763 2,645,770 2,772,763 2,645,770

Members’ admission fees 344,210 272,400 344,210 272,400

3,116,973 2,918,170 3,116,973 2,918,170

Less expenditure

Administrative expenses 3 (5,141,148) (4,901,005) (5,092,781) (4,855,988)

Deficit from operating activities (2,024,175) (1,982,835) (1,975,808) (1,937,818)

Other income 4 754,452 857,084 464,171 662,787

(1,269,723) (1,125,751) (1,511,637) (1,275,031)

Net surplus from the Academy 6 7,014,098 4,770,209 7,014,098 4,770,209

Net surplus from operating activities 5,744,375 3,644,458 5,502,461 3,495,178

Share of profit of associates (net of tax) 12,103 38,858 – –

Net surplus before tax 5,756,478 3,683,316 5,502,461 3,495,178

Income tax expense 7 (986,340) (658,836) (964,754) (645,718)

Net surplus after income tax 

  transferred to accumulated fund 4,770,138 3,024,480 4,537,707 2,849,460

Income and Expenditure Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheets
At 31 December 2008

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

       Group          Institute

Note 2008 2007 2008 2007

              $                $               $              $

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 8 41,606,502 41,428,866 41,606,502 41,428,866

Investment in subsidiaries 17 – – 3 3

Associates 9 92,528 80,426 – –

Deferred tax assets 10 34,715 – 34,715 –

41,733,745 41,509,292 41,641,220 41,428,869

Current assets

Inventories 27,215 36,209 27,215 36,209

Trade and other receivables 11 703,659 597,094 778,445 702,763

Fixed deposits 16 3,617,968 3,992,157 2,728,387 3,234,241

Cash and bank balances 16 3,323,442 2,462,646 3,104,968 2,339,358

7,672,284 7,088,106 6,639,015 6,312,571

Total assets 49,406,029 48,597,398 48,280,235 47,741,440

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans (secured) 13 – 5,111,111 – 5,111,111

Finance lease liabilities 14 211,627 171,867 211,627 171,867

Deferred tax liabilities 10 – 96,300 – 96,300

211,627 5,379,278 211,627 5,379,278

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 12 2,543,328 1,998,178 2,529,684 1,984,767

Amount due to associate – 3,298 – 3,298

Course fee received in advance 3,547,241 3,009,214 3,547,241 3,009,214

Subscription fee received in advance 772,633 620,871 658,858 535,801

Bank loans (secured) 13 1,000,000 1,333,333 1,000,000 1,333,333

Finance lease liabilities 14 97,207 97,018 97,207 97,018

Current tax payable 981,938 686,339 960,353 673,221

8,942,347 7,748,251 8,793,343 7,636,652

Total liabilities 9,153,974 13,127,529 9,004,970 13,015,930

Net assets 40,252,055 35,469,869 39,275,265 34,725,510

Represented by

Accumulated fund 40,236,274 35,466,136 39,259,484 34,721,777

Miscellaneous fund 15 15,781 3,733 15,781 3,733

40,252,055 35,469,869 39,275,265 34,725,510
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Note Accumulated
Fund

Miscellaneous
Fund Total

$ $ $

Group

Balance at 1 January 2007 32,441,656 24,473 32,466,129

Net surplus for the year 3,024,480 – 3,024,480

Net deficit for the year 15 – (20,740) (20,740)

Total recognised surplus/(deficit) 3,024,480 (20,740) 3,003,740

Balance at 31 December 2007 35,466,136 3,733 35,469,869

Net surplus for the year 4,770,138 – 4,770,138

Net surplus for the year 15 – 12,048 12,048

Total recognised surplus 4,770,138 12,048 4,782,186

Balance at 31 December 2008 40,236,274 15,781 40,252,055

Institute

Balance at 1 January 2007 31,872,317 24,473 31,896,790

Net surplus for the year 2,849,460 – 2,849,460

Net deficit for the year 15 – (20,740) (20,740)

Total recognised surplus/(deficit) 2,849,460 (20,740) 2,828,720

Balance at 31 December 2007 34,721,777 3,733 34,725,510

Net surplus for the year 4,537,707 – 4,537,707

Net surplus for the year 15 – 12,048 12,048

Total recognised surplus 4,537,707 12,048 4,549,755

Balance at 31 December 2008 39,259,484 15,781 39,275,265

Statements of Changes in Accumulated 
Fund and Miscellaneous Fund
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008

            Group              Institute

2008 2007 2008 2007

               $                $               $              $

Cash flows from operating activities

Net surplus before tax 5,756,478 3,683,316 5,502,461 3,495,178

Adjustments for:

Depreciation for property, plant and equipment 916,012 902,431 916,012 902,431

Interest on finance leases 20,572 15,856 20,572 15,856

Loan interest 212,701 306,764 212,701 306,764

Impairment loss of trade receivables 19,373 53,787 19,373 53,787

Interest income (63,670) (54,512) (53,531) (43,195)

Share of profit of associates (12,103) (38,858) – –

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment – (182) – (182)

Property, plant and equipment written off 7,436 72,171 7,436 72,171

Operating surplus before working capital changes 6,856,799 4,940,773 6,625,024 4,802,810

Inventory 8,994 (36,209) 8,994 (36,209)

Receivables (128,248) 1,211,142 (95,839) 1,118,503

Subscription fees received in advance 151,762 110,133 123,057 87,368

Payables 562,977 359,200 562,745 357,709

Course fees received in advance 538,027 1,131,853 538,027 1,131,853

Miscellaneous fund 12,048 (20,740) 12,048 (20,740)

Cash generated from operations 8,002,359 7,696,152 7,774,056 7,441,294

Income tax paid (821,755) (1,015,906) (808,638) (1,005,116)

Net cash from operating activities 7,180,604 6,680,246 6,965,418 6,436,178

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 65,980 52,479 54,315 41,881

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (968,630) (723,404) (968,630) (723,404)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 192,346 4,423 192,346 4,423

Net cash used in investing activities (710,304) (666,502) (721,969) (677,100)

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid on finance leases (20,572) (15,856) (20,572) (15,856)

Loan interest paid (233,826) (306,764) (233,826) (306,764)

Repayment of principal loan (5,444,444) (1,333,334) (5,444,444) (1,333,334)

Repayment of finance lease liabilities (284,851) (100,572) (284,851) (100,572)

Net cash used in financing activities (5,983,693) (1,756,526) (5,983,693) (1,756,526)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 486,607 4,257,218 259,756 4,002,552

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6,454,803 2,197,585 5,573,599 1,571,047

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (note 16) 6,941,410 6,454,803 5,833,355 5,573,599

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying  
financial statements.

1 Corporate information
 The Institute (ROS Ref No. 0137/2004) is the national organisation of the accountancy profession in 

Singapore.  It was established in June 1963 as the Singapore Society of Accountants (SSA) under the 
SSA Ordinance 1963, then reconstituted and renamed the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of 
Singapore (ICPAS) on 11 February 1989 under the Accountants Act 1987.  As of 1 April 2004, ICPAS is 
reconstituted as a society under the Societies Act.  The restructuring is primarily a change of form for the 
Institute as ICPAS continues to be the national body for the accountancy profession in Singapore and its 
functions remain unchanged.  The registered office of the Institute is located at 20 Aljunied Road, #06-02 
CPA House, Singapore 389805.

 The principal activities of the Institute are those of administering the Institute’s membership, catering for 
the training and professional development of its members.

 The consolidated financial statements relate to the Institute and its subsidiaries (together referred to as 
the Group) and the Group’s interests in associates.

2 Significant accounting policies
  a) Basis of preparation

  The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Societies Act  
 and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS). 

  The financial statements, which are presented in Singapore dollars, have been prepared on   
 historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 

  The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group and the Institute and are  
 consistent with those used in the previous financial year.

  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires the use of estimates and  
 assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent  
 assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income  
 and expenditure during the financial year.  Although these estimates are based on the Council’s  
 best knowledge of current events and actions and historical experiences and various other factors  
 that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, actual results may ultimately differ  
 from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas  
 where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 2(p).

  The Group has not applied the following new/revised FRS or interpretations that have been issued  
 as of the balance sheet date but are not yet effective: 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2008
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2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
  a) Basis of preparation (cont’d)

  FRS 1 (Revised)   Presentation of Financial Statements
  FRS 23    Borrowing Costs
  INT FRS 113   Customer Loyalty Programmes
  INT FRS 116   Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation      
  Amendments to FRS 101  Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled 
  and FRS 27    Entity or Associate
  Amendments to FRS 32  Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on 
  and FRS 1   Liquidation 
  Amendments to FRS 102 Share-based Payment – Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
  Improvements to FRSs 2008   

  The initial application of these standards and interpretations, where applicable, are not expected to  
 have any material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

  b) Consolidation
  Subsidiaries
  A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating  

 policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.  The financial statements of the subsidiaries are  
 included in the consolidated financial statements from the date of the control commences until the  
 date that control ceases.   Intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated in preparing the  
 consolidated financial statements.

  Associates
  Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over  

 their financial and operating policies.  The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for  
 using the equity method.  The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the  
 profit or loss of the associates from the date that significant influence commences until the date  
 that significant influence ceases.  When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an  
 associate, the carrying amount of that interest (including any long-term investments) is reduced to  
 zero and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has  
 an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the associate.

  Accounting for subsidiaries and associates by the Institute
  In the Institute’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and associates are  

 stated at cost less impairment losses.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
c) Functional and foreign currencies
 Functional currency
 Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency that best 

reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Institute 
and its subsidiaries (“the functional currency”).  The consolidated financial statements are presented in 
Singapore dollars, which is the functional currency of the Institute and its subsidiaries.

 Foreign currencies
 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate in 

effect at the date of the transaction.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
at the balance sheet date are translated into the functional currency at the rates ruling at that date.  All 
exchange differences are taken to the income and expenditure statement.

d) Inventories
 Inventories, comprising accounting books and manuals, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable 

value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

e) Property, plant and equipment
 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  

 Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and costs of bringing the 
asset to working condition for its intended use.  Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included 
as part of the cost of asset if the obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration costs is incurred as 
a consequence of acquiring or using the asset.  Expenditure for additions, improvements and renewals 
are capitalised and expenditure for maintenance and repairs are charged to the income and expenditure 
statement.  The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the 
Group and its cost can be measured reliably.  The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and 
equipment are recognised in the income and expenditure statement as incurred.

 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost 
less residual value of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

 Freehold buildings   50 years
 Furniture and office equipment  3 to 10 years
 Computers    3 to 4 years
 Renovation    3 to 5 years

 Freehold land and renovation-in-progress are not depreciated.

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at 
each financial year-end.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
e) Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)        

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is 
included in the income and expenditure statement in the year the asset is derecognised.

f) Impairment of non-financial assets
 The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether 

there is any indication of impairment.  If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. 

 An impairment loss is recognised in the income and expenditure statement if the carrying amount of an 
asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.  A cash-generating unit is the smallest 
identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and 
groups.  

 The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to 
sell and its value in use.  In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.

 Impairment losses recognised in prior years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that 
the loss has decreased or no longer exists.  An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change 
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.  An impairment loss is reversed only to the 
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss has been recognised.  Reversal of impairment 
loss is recorded in income and expenditure statement.  After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is 
adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a 
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

g)  Financial assets
 Classification, Recognition and Measurement
 Financial assets are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and 

receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets as appropriate.  Financial 
assets are recognised on the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

 When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial  
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.  The Group determines 
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at each 
financial year-end, with the exception that the designation of financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss is not revocable.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
g)  Financial assets (cont’d)
  Classification, Recognition and Measurement (cont’d)
 The Group does not have the following financial assets: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, 

held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets.

 Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market are classified as loans and receivables. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less impairment losses.  Gains and losses are recognised in the income and 
expenditure statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through 
the amortisation process.

 The Group classifies the following financial assets as loans and receivables:
 • Cash and cash equivalents
 • Trade and other receivables including amounts due from subsidiary and an associate

 Impairment of Financial Assets
 The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial 

asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

 Assets carried at amortised cost
 If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has 

been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate.  The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance 
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income and expenditure statement.

 If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed.  Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the 
income and expenditure statement to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its 
amortised cost at the reversal date.

 Derecognition of Financial Assets
 A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 

expired.

 On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of (a) the 
consideration received and (b) any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised directly in equity is 
recognised in the income and expenditure statement.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
h)  Trade and other receivables
 Trade receivables and other receivables are classified and accounted for as loans and receivables under 

FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (FRS 39).  They are recognised initially 
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less 
allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables is established 
when there is evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original 
terms of the receivables. The amount of the allowance is recognised in the income and expenditure 
statement.  

i)  Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and bank balances and fixed deposits with financial 

institutions.

 Cash on hand and in banks and fixed deposits are classified and accounted for as loans and receivables 
under FRS 39.  The accounting policy is stated in Note 2 (g).

j)  Financial liabilities
 Financial liabilities include trade payables, other amounts payable and interest-bearing loans.  Financial 

liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.  Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value 
of consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

 Gains and losses are recognised in the income and expenditure statement when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.  The liabilities are derecognised when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.

k) Provisions
 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where, as a 

result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of the provision is the present value of 
the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

l) Leases
 Finance leases
 Leases of assets in which the Group assumes substantially the risks and rewards of ownership are 

classified as finance leases.  Property, plant and equipment acquired through finance leases are 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d) 
l) Leases (cont’d)
 Finance leases (cont’d)
 capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum 

lease payments. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with 
the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance 
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged to the income and expenditure statement.

 Operating leases
 Leases of assets in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the 

lessor are classified as operating leases.  Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives 
received from the lessor) are taken to the income and expenditure statement on a straight-line basis over 
the period of the lease.

 When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to 
be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination 
takes place.

m) Revenue recognition
 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group 

and the revenue can be reliably measured.

 Members’ annual and admission fees, students’ fees and students’ administration fees and CATS & 
ATTS fees are recognised when due.

 Course fees (from continuing professional education and training) are recognised when the services are 
rendered.

 Advertising income is recognised when advertisement is placed.
 
 Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues based on effective interest rate method unless 

collectibility is in doubt.

 Sundry income, arising mainly from the sale of Members’ Handbooks, are recognised when the goods 
sold are delivered.

n) Employee benefits
 Pension obligations
 As required by law, the Group makes contributions to the state pension scheme, the Central Provident 

Fund (CPF) Scheme which is a defined contribution pension scheme.  Contributions to CPF are 
recognised as expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d) 
n) Employee benefits (cont’d)
 Employee leave entitlement
 Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.  The estimated 

liability for leave is recognised for services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. 

o) Income tax
 Income tax for the financial year comprises current and deferred tax.  Income tax is recognised in the 

income and expenditure statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in 
equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted 
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of 
previous years.

 Deferred tax is recognised, using the balance sheet method, providing for all temporary differences at 
the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the 
financial statements.  Deferred tax is not recognised for the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that 
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit.

 Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences  
when they reverse, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted  
by the balance sheet date.

 A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which temporary differences can be utilised.  Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit 
will be realised.

p) Significant accounting estimates and judgements
 a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
   Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
   The cost of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis  over their  

 respective useful lives.  Management estimates the useful lives of these property, plant and  
 equipment to be within 3 to 50 years.  The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and  
 equipment as at 31 December 2008 was $41,606,502 (2007 : $41,428,866).  Changes in the  
 expected level of usage and technological developments could impact the economic useful lives  
 and the residual values of these assets.  Therefore future depreciation charges could be revised  
 and impact the profit in future years.  

 b) Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies
   There are no significant judgements made in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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3 Administrative expenses
 Secretariat

              Group              Institute

2008 2007 2008 2007

                    $                   $                  $                  $

Auditor’s remuneration 26,000 22,000 22,000 18,000

Computer and office equipment maintenance 12,346 18,471 12,346 18,471

CPF 190,701 185,131 190,701 185,131

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 8) 522,285 521,804 522,285 521,805

Employee benefit expenses 57,145 29,350 57,145 29,350

Exchange gain – (20) – (20)

Finance costs

- Interest on finance lease 1,802 1,664 1,802 1,664

- Interest on loan 212,701 306,764 212,701 306,764

General expenses 106,141 95,716 66,715 54,861

ICPAS scholarship 10,500 12,000 10,500 12,000

Insurance premiums 29,080 20,002 29,080 20,002

Journal and publication 260,892 319,276 260,892 319,276

Legal and professional fees 98,078 38,655 96,348 38,655

Library expenses 12,753 15,696 12,753 15,696

Lights and power 31,606 26,275 31,606 26,275

Marketing and promotion 391,979 328,531 391,979 328,531

Office maintenance and air conditioning 214,426 210,037 214,426 210,037

Postage and telecommunications 49,961 43,270 49,796 43,270

Practice Monitoring Division (Note 5) 278,938 180,910 278,938 180,910

Printing and stationery 22,913 25,927 22,576 25,763

Property, plant and equipment written off – 8,504 – 8,504

Property tax 165,187 113,440 165,187 113,440

Regional and international conferences 99,655 85,831 99,655 85,831

Rental expenses 11,444 11,964 11,444 11,964

Salaries and bonuses 1,775,388 1,738,584 1,775,388 1,738,585

Seminars and talks 25,022 83,504 22,313 83,504

Social and hospitality 336,690 290,618 336,690 290,618

Subscriptions to accountancy bodies 108,573 110,617 108,573 110,617

Transport 6,804 5,879 6,804 5,879

Website expenses 82,138 50,605 82,138 50,605

5,141,148 4,901,005 5,092,781 4,855,988

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4 Other income

                Group              Institute

2008 2007 2008 2007

                   $                   $                  $                  $

Advertising income 87,691 105,094 87,691 105,094

CATS & ATTS fees 461,213 364,225 – –

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment – 182 – 182

Interest income from fixed deposits and bank balances 63,670 54,512 53,531 43,195

Management fee charged to subsidiaries and associate 6,800 6,800 172,800 172,800

Penalty fees 3,890 2,520 3,890 2,520

Sundry income 121,478 315,576 136,549 330,821

Website income 9,710 8,175 9,710 8,175

754,452 857,084 464,171 662,787

5 Practice monitoring division

             Group & Institute

2008 2007

                    $                $

Fee income 90,000 80,350

Sundry income 11,032 12,243

Less expenses :

Administrative expenses (45,430) (100,973)

CPF (24,334) (14,932)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 8) (7,328) (6,320)

Salaries and bonuses (302,878) (151,278)

(379,970) (273,503)

Net deficit (278,938) (180,910)



>     ICPAS     >     annual report 2008/200968

6 Net surplus from the Academy
(i) Continuing Professional Education (CPE)

             Group & Institute

2008 2007

                 $            $

Fee income 1,806,922 1,815,075

Less expenses :

Administrative expenses (357,654) (331,283)

Bad debts written off (1,167) (2,546)

Course materials (37,641) (50,066)

CPF (26,361) (24,335)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 8) (50,474) (52,263)

Interest on finance lease (2,411) (2,161)

Lecturers’ fees (471,578) (514,620)

Property, plant and equipment written off – (4,311)

Rental expenses (2,986) (2,450)

Salaries and bonuses (217,597) (209,105)

(1,167,869) (1,193,140)

Surplus on CPE 639,053 621,935

Notes to the Financial Statements

 (ii) Training courses for ACCA, ATT, CAT, PAC, SAT, STT and others 

             Group & Institute

2008 2007

                    $                $

Fee income 14,110,566 11,207,306

Less expenses :

Administrative expenses (2,165,000) (1,981,918)

Bad debts written off (18,206) (51,241)

Course materials (445,875) (428,298)

CPF (236,125) (224,696)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 8) (335,925) (322,044)

Exchange gain – 218

Interest on finance lease (15,756) (11,429)

Lecturers’ fees (2,414,333) (2,110,563)

Property, plant and equipment written off (7,437) (59,356)

Rental expenses (147,712) (44,727)

Salaries and bonuses (1,949,152) (1,824,978)

(7,735,521) (7,059,032)

Surplus on training courses 6,375,045 4,148,274

Net surplus from the Academy (i & ii) 7,014,098 4,770,209
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7 Income tax expense

               Group              Institute

2008 2007 2008 2007

                   $                   $                     $                $

Tax expense

Current tax 1,061,794 686,339 1,040,208 673,221

Under/(over) provision in prior year 55,560 (27,503) 55,560 (27,503)

1,117,354 658,836 1,095,768 645,718

Current deferred tax 4,313 – 4,313 –

Overprovision of deferred tax liabilities in prior year (96,300) – (96,300) –

Underprovision of deferred tax assets in prior year (39,027) – (39,027) –

(131,014) – (131,014) –

Total 986,340 658,836 964,754 645,718

The income tax expense on the results of the financial year varies from the amount of income tax determined 
by applying the Singapore statutory rate of income tax to net surplus before tax due to the following factors :

               Group                 Institute

2008 2007 2008 2007

                    $                   $                     $                $

Net surplus before tax 5,756,478 3,683,316 5,502,461 3,495,178

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 18% 1,036,166 662,997 990,443 629,132

Singapore statutory stepped income exemption (49,935) (41,468) (27,450) (27,450)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 81,528 64,544 81,528 71,539

Under/(over) provision of income tax in prior year 55,560 (27,503) 55,560 (27,503)

Overprovision of deferred tax liabilities in prior year (96,300) – (96,300) –

Underprovision of deferred tax assets in prior year (39,027) – (39,027) –

Others (1,652) 266 – –

986,340 658,836 964,754 645,718
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8 Property, plant and equipment
Group & Institute

Freehold
Land

Freehold
Buildings

Furniture
 & Office

Equipment Computers Renovation* Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

Cost

Balance as at 1 January 2007 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,521,934 943,064 458,787 44,806,549

Additions – – 378,419 184,465 223,620 786,504

Written off – – (206,687) (44,449) (12,610) (263,746)

Balance as at 31 December 2007 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,693,666 1,083,080 669,797 45,329,307

Additions – – 430,025 161,130 702,275 1,293,430

Disposal – – (412,170) – – (412,170)

Written off – – (347,562) (6,274) (1,500) (355,336)

Balance as at 31 December 2008 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,363,959 1,237,936 1,370,572 45,855,231

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 January 2007 – 1,286,019 829,835 704,532 364,957 3,185,343

Depreciation charge for the year – 434,135 272,369 123,922 72,005 902,431

Disposals – – (24,432) – – (24,432)

Written off – – (115,951) (35,045) (11,905) (162,901)

Balance as at 31 December 2007 – 1,720,154 961,821 793,409 425,057 3,900,441

Depreciation charge for the year – 434,136 247,897 167,478 66,501 916,012

Disposals – – (219,824) – – (219,824)

Written off – – (340,126) (6,274) (1,500) (347,900)

Balance as at 31 December 2008 – 2,154,290 649,768 954,613 490,058 4,248,729

Carrying amount

Balance as at 31 December 2007 20,176,000 19,986,610 731,845 289,671 244,740 41,428,866

Balance as at 31 December 2008 20,176,000 19,552,474 714,191 283,323 880,514 41,606,502

Notes to the Financial Statements

* Renovation includes renovation-in-progress of #12 KH Plaza Aljunied, amounting to $668,542 (2007 : Nil).
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8 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
In accordance with the Constitution of the Institute, the freehold land and freehold buildings were transferred 
to Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore Pte Ltd which holds the freehold land and freehold 
buildings in trust for the Institute.

    Location
Freehold properties i) CPA House
    20 Aljunied Road
    Singapore 389805
    Consisting of 5 floors
    (Units #01-01, #01-03, #01-04, #01-05, #01-06, #02-01, #02-02, #04-01, 
    #04-02, #05-01, #05-02, #06-01 and #06-02) and totalling 2,779 sq. meters
 
   ii) 6 Raffles Quay
    #23-00 
    Singapore 048580

Assets held under finance leases
During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of $324,800 (2007 
: $63,099) under finance leases.  The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment held under finance 
leases as at 31 December 2008 was $295,980 (2007 : $265,089).  Leased assets are pledged as security for 
the related finance lease liabilities (Note 14).

Assets pledged as security
In addition to assets held under finance lease, a piece of freehold property with a total carrying amount of 
$14,416,562 (2007: $14,719,008) is pledged as security to secure a mortgage loan from a bank (Note 13).

Depreciation
The depreciation for the year is charged to the income and expenditure statement as follows:

             Group & Institute

2008 2007

                    $                $

The Secretariat (Note 3) 522,285 521,804

The Practice Monitoring Division (Note 5) 7,328 6,320

The Academy (Note 6 (i)) 50,474 52,263

The Academy (Note 6 (ii)) 335,925 322,044

916,012 902,431

Notes to the Financial Statements
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9 Associates

Notes to the Financial Statements

                Group               Institute

2008 2007 2008 2007

                    $                   $                     $                $

Investment in associates 92,528 80,426 –* –*

            Effective interest held
               by the Group

Name Country of incorporation 2008 2007

                   %               %

Insolvency Practitioners Association of Singapore Limited          Singapore 50 50

Singapore Institute of Taxation Limited          Singapore 33 33

Details of associates are as follows:

* There is no cost of investment as the associates are companies limited by guarantee whereby every member  
of the company undertakes to contribute to meet the debts and liabilities of the company in the event of its 
liquidation to an amount not exceeding $10.

The summarised financial information of the associates are as follows:

2008 2007

                    $               $

Assets and liabilities

Current assets 212,690 202,495

Current liabilities 6,684 24,504

Results

Revenue 51,615 115,781

Profit after taxation 28,015 95,431

During the financial year, the Institute has the following transaction with an associate on the terms agreed 
between the parties :

2008 2007

                    $                $

Management fee income 6,800 6,800
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10 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
                Group & Institute

2008 2007

                    $               $

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) comprises tax effect of
temporary differences arising from :

Accelerated tax depreciation (87,590) (96,300)

Provision for bonus 86,400 –

Provision for unutilised annual leave 35,905 –

34,715 (96,300)

Representing:

Deferred tax assets 122,305 –

Deferred tax liabilities (87,590) (96,300)

34,715 (96,300)

             Group                Institute

2008 2007 2008 2007

                   $                    $                     $                $

Trade receivables 330,412 361,214 330,412 361,214

Amount due from (trade)

- subsidiaries – – 77,356 109,765

- associate 1,099 – 1,099 –

Accrued practice review fee receivable 40,500 43,500 40,500 43,500

Deposits 173,046 24,750 173,046 24,750

Interest receivable 3,420 5,730 850 1,634

Others 27,805 18,616 27,805 18,616

Prepayments 127,377 143,284 127,377 143,284

703,659 597,094 778,445 702,763

11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on immediate to about 6 months’ terms.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

               Group                 Institute

2008 2007 2008 2007

                   $                    $                     $                $

Trade payables 720,800 806,400 720,800 806,400

Other payables 588,940 – 588,940 –

Accrued operating expenses  1,233,588 1,191,778 1,219,944 1,178,367

2,543,328 1,998,178 2,529,684 1,984,767

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day term.

12 Trade and other payables

              Effective interest rate
             per annum

               Group & Institute

2008 2007 2008 2007

                   %                   %                     $                $

Current liabilities

Secured bank loan 3.16 4.65 1,000,000 1,333,333

Non-current liabilities

Secured bank loan – 4.65 – 5,111,111

The loan is repayable in 72 equal monthly installments of about S$111,111 commencing 1 November 2006.  It 
is secured by a mortgage over a freehold property (Note 8) and bear interest at 1% over the bank’s prevailing 
cost of funds per annum.  The interest rate on the floating rate loan is repriced at interval of 1 month.

The carrying amount of the bank loan approximates its fair value as it bears interest at rates which approximates 
the current incremental borrowing rate for similar type of borrowing arrangement.

13 Bank loan
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14 Finance lease liabilities

Notes to the Financial Statements

Group & Institute

               Group & Institute

2008 2007

                    $                $

Balance at beginning of year 3,733 24,473

Add: Donations from members 21,569 23,900

Less: Community service projects funded during the year (9,521) (44,640)

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year 12,048 (20,740)

Balance at end of year 15,781 3,733

15 Miscellaneous fund

Community Service Project Fund
The fund is made up of donations from members, money from fund-raising projects and contributions from the 
Institute.  It is used for the Institute’s community service projects.  It is made up as follows:

                Minimum lease 
                payments

              Present value 
               of payments

2008 2007 2008 2007

                   $                    $                     $                $

Within one year 113,516 113,076 97,207 97,018

After one year but not more than five years 228,278 199,596 211,627 171,867

Total minimum lease payments  341,794 312,672 308,834 268,885

Less: Finance charges (32,960) (43,787) – –

Present value of minimum lease payments 308,834 268,885 308,834 268,885

These finance lease liabilities are secured by a charge over leased assets (Note 8).

At the expiration of the finance lease agreements, the Institute has the option to purchase the assets for 
$13,157 (2007 : $13,157).  In the event that the option is not exercised, the lessor has the right to sell the 
assets to a third party and the Institute has undertaken to indemnify the lessor for the difference if the selling 
price is lower than the residual value of $13,157 (2007 : $13,157). The effective rate of interest is approximately 
3.8% to 6.8% (2007: 3.8% to 6.8% per annum).
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               Group                Institute

2008 2007 2008 2007

                   $                   $                     $                $

Fixed deposits 3,617,968 3,992,157 2,728,387 3,234,241

Cash and bank balances 3,323,442 2,462,646 3,104,968 2,339,358

6,941,410 6,454,803 5,833,355 5,573,599

Fixed deposits are placed for varying periods of between 1 and 12 months depending on the immediate cash 
requirements of the Group and the Institute and earn interest of 0.5% to 2.06%   (2007 : 0.83%  to 2.88%) per 
annum. 

16 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and fixed deposits.  

2008 2007

                    $                $

Subscription of journals 15,071 15,245

Management fee income 166,000 166,000

17 Subsidiaries and intra-group transactions
Association of Taxation Technicians (S) Limited (“ATTS”), Certified Accounting Technicians (Singapore) Ltd 
(“CATS”) and Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore Pte Ltd (“ICPAS PL”), which are all 
incorporated in Singapore, are deemed to be wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Institute as Council Members of 
the Institute directly control ATTS, CATS and ICPAS PL.

During the financial year, the Institute has the following significant transactions with the subsidiaries on terms 
agreed between the parties:  

                Group & Institute

2008 2007

                    $                $

Short-term employee benefits 900,260 829,704

Post-employment benefits 61,052 60,737

961,312 890,441

18 Key management personnel compensation
 Key management personnel compensation comprised: 
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                  Group & Institute

2008 2007

                    $                $

Capital commitments in respect of property, plant and equipment 229,509 11,000

 (ii) Operating lease commitments
 The Group leases an office under non-cancellable operating lease agreement.  

 Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease as at balance sheet date are  
 as follows:

19 Commitments
 i) Capital commitments
  Capital expenditure contracted for as at the balance sheet date but not recognised in the financial   

 statements is as follows:  

                  Group & Institute

2008 2007

                    $                $

Within one year 458,537 17,760

After one year but within five years 1,286,164 28,120

During the year, the Institute entered into a lease agreement for the use of property at No. 12 Aljunied 
Road, #03 and #04 KH Plaza, Aljunied, Singapore, for a fixed monthly rental for a term of 4 years. 

20 Financial instruments
 Financial risk management
 The main risks arising from the Group’s financial management are interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and 

foreign currency risk.  The Group reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are 
summarised below:

 Interest rate risk
 The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing loan and fixed 

deposits. The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debt.  The 
sensitivity analysis for changes in interest rate is not disclosed as the effect on the income and expenditure 
statement is considered not significant.
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20 Financial instruments (cont’d)
 Financial risk management (cont’d)
 Credit risk
 The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from the failure of a customer or a counterparty to settle its financial 

and contractual obligations to the Group, as and when they fall due.  The Group manages this risk by 
monitoring credit ratings and limiting the aggregate financial exposure to any individual counterparty.

 The Group places its cash and fixed deposits with banks and financial institutions which are regulated.

 The credit risk for trade and other receivables is as follows :
 i) Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

  Bank deposits that are neither past due nor impaired are mainly deposits with banks with high credit- 
 ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.  Trade receivables that are neither past due nor  
 impaired are substantially from companies with a good collection track record with the Group.

 ii) Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

  There is no other class of financial assets that is past due and/or impaired except for trade receivables.

Notes to the Financial Statements

              Group              Institute

2008 2007 2008 2007

                    $                   $                     $                $

Past due 0 to 3 months  152,632 289,547 152,632 289,547

Past due 3 to 6 months 168,301 49,559 168,301 49,559

Past due over 6 months 9,479 22,108 9,479 22,108

330,412 361,214 330,412 361,214

 Liquidity risk
 In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances 

deemed adequate by the Management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations 
in cash flows.

 The Group targets for available funds in the form of surplus liquidity and aims at maintaining flexibility in funding 
by keeping committed and uncommitted credit lines available.

 The table below analyses the maturity profile of the Group’s and Institute’s financial liabilities based on 
contractual undiscounted cash flows.  
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Less than 
1 year

Between 
1 & 2 years

Between 
2 & 5 years

Over
5 years

               $               $                $               $

Group

At 31 December 2008

Trade and other payables 2,543,328 – – –

Finance lease 113,516 228,278 – –

Borrowings 1,000,000 – – –

At 31 December 2007

Trade and other payables 2,001,476 – – –

Finance lease 113,076 199,596 – –

Borrowings 1,333,333 1,333,333 1,333,333 2,444,445

Institute

At 31 December 2008

Trade and other payables 2,529,684 – – –

Finance lease 113,516 228,278 – –

Borrowings 1,000,000 – – –

At 31 December 2007

Trade and other payables 1,988,065 – – –

Finance lease 113,076 199,596 – –

Borrowings 1,333,333 1,333,333 1,333,333 2,444,445

 Foreign currency risk
 The Group’s foreign currency risk results mainly from cash flows and transactions denominated in foreign 

currencies.  It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative forward foreign exchange contracts for hedging 
and speculative purposes.

 The Group has no significant exposure in respect of financial assets and liabilities held in foreign currency.

 Estimation of fair values 

 Bank loan
 The carrying value of the bank loan approximates its fair value and is disclosed in Note 13.

20 Financial instruments (cont’d)
 Financial risk management (cont’d)
 Liquidity risk (cont’d)



20 Financial instruments (cont’d)
 Financial risk management (cont’d) 
 Other financial assets and liabilities
 The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year (including trade and 

other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables) are assumed to approximate their 
fair values because of the short period to maturity.

Notes to the Financial Statements

               Group                 Institute

2008 2007 2008 2007

                     $                   $                     $                   $

Financial assets

Loans and receivables 
(including cash and cash equivalents)

 
7,517,692 6,908,613 6,484,423 6,133,078

Financial liabilities

Amortised cost 3,652,689 8,547,146 3,639,045 8,533,735

21 Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2008, the Institute was a defending party to a legal suit relating to an alleged intellectual 
property infringement issue, of which the outcome is not conclusive.  It is currently not practicable to estimate 
the financial effect of the contingent liability and as such no provision is made in the financial statements for any 
claims that may arise.  

22 Authorisation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Group and Institute for the financial year ended 31 December 2008 were 
authorised for issue by the Council on 18 February 2009.
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Form of Proxy

THE SCHEDULE
            Rule 12

THE INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
OF SINGAPORE (GENERAL MEETINGS) RULES

I, __________________________________ of ___________________________ being a member of the Institute, 

do hereby appoint ______________________________ of _________________________________, or failing him 

________________________________ of ______________________________ as my proxy to vote for me at the 

Annual General Meeting of the Institute to be held on 18 April 2009 and any adjournment of such meeting.

Dated this _______ day of _________________ 2009.

Signed by ______________________________________)

in the presence of _______________________________)   

member of Institute of Certified   )

Public Accountants of Singapore, of   )  _________________________________

(Address)_______________________________________)   (Signature of member)

         _______________________________________)

  
         _______________________________________)
   (Signature of Witness)

NOTE: A member entitled to vote may appoint as his proxy any other member who is qualified to vote,  
  except that no member shall be entitled to vote by proxy in the election of a member or members  
  of the Council. [Rule 11, ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules]

  The instrument of proxy shall be in the form set out in the Schedule and shall be signed in the  
  presence of another member, other than the proxy holder, who is entitled to vote. [Rule 12, ICPAS  
  (General Meetings) Rules]

  The proxy shall not be entitled to vote at a meeting unless the instrument of proxy  has been  
  deposited with the Executive Director not less than 48 hours before the date and time fixed for the  
  meeting. [Rule 15, ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules]
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